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155 East Broad Street
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING BASED UPON THE AUDIT PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Trustees
Central Ohio Transit Authority

and

The Honorable Betty Montgomery
Auditor of State:

We have audited the financial statements of the Central Ohio Transit Authority (COTA) as of and for the
year ended December 31, 2002, and have issued our report thereon dated June 13, 2003. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States.

COMPLIANCE

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether COTAs financial statements are free of material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts,
and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was
not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests
disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards. However, we noted certain immaterial instances of noncompliance, which we have presented
to management of COTA in a separate letter dated June 13, 2003.

INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

In planning and performing our audit, we considered COTA’s internal control over financial reporting in
order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial
statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control over financial reporting. Our
consideration of the internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all matters in
the internal control over financial reporting that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a
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condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not
reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements in amounts that would be material in relation to
the financial statements being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees
in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the internal
control over financial reporting and its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
we noted certain matters involving the internal control over financial reporting, which we have presented
to management of COTA in a separate letter dated June 13, 2003.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the board of trustees and management of

COTA, the Ohio Auditor of State, and the federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not
intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

JM/{MW

June 13, 2003
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPLIANCE APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAM
AND ON THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Board of Trustees
Central Ohio Transit Authority

and

The Honorable Betty Montgomery
Auditor of State:

COMPLIANCE

We have audited the compliance of the Central Ohio Transit Authority (COTA) with the types of compliance
requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance
Supplement that are applicable to its major federal programs for the year ended December 31, 2002. COTA’s
major federal program is identified in the summary of auditors’ results section of the accompanying Schedule
of Findings and Questioned Costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grants applicable to its major federal program is the responsibility of COTA’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on COTA’s compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about COTA’s compliance with
those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal
determination on COTA’s compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, COTA complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to above that are
applicable to its major federal program for the year ended December 31, 2002. However, the results of our
auditing procedures disclosed an instance of noncompliance with those requirements that are required to be
reported in accordance with OMB Circular A-133 and which is described in the accompanying Schedule of
Findings and Questioned Costs as item 02-01.
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INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE

The management of COTA is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to federal programs. In
planning and performing our audit, we considered COTA’s internal control over compliance with
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program in order to determine our
auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on internal
control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133.

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance would not necessarily disclose all matters in
internal control that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in which the design or
operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk
that noncompliance with applicable requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants that would be
material in relation to a major federal program being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely
period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters
involving the internal control over compliance and its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses.

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

We have audited the basic financial statements of COTA, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2002,
and have issued our report thereon dated June 13, 2003. Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming
an opinion on the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of
federal awards is presented for the purpose of additional analysis as required by OMB Circular A-133 and is
not a required part of the basic financial statements. This schedule is the responsibility of the management of
COTA. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in our audit of the basic
financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects when considered in relation to
the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the board of trustees, management of COTA, the

Ohio Auditor of State, and the federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be
and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

lﬂM ,“: 7;!‘4“4_4_/"

June 13, 2003
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CENTRAL OHIO TRANSIT AUTHORITY

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002

1. GENERAL

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards presents the activity of all federal
financial assistance programs of COTA. COTA’s reporting entity is defined in Note 1 to COTA’s
financial statements.

2. BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented using the accrual basis
of accounting.

3. RELATIONSHIP OF FEDERAL FINANCIAL REPORTS

Amounts reported in the accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards agree with the
amounts reported in the related federal financial reports.



CENTRAL OHIO TRANSIT AUTHORITY

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002

)

@

Summary of Auditors’ Results
(a) The type of report issued on the basic financial statements:

(b) Reportable conditions in internal control were disclosed by
the audit of the financial statements:

Material weaknesses:

(c) Noncompliance which is material to the financial statements:

(d) Reportable conditions in internal control over major programs:

(e) The type of report issued on compliance for major programs:

(f) Any audit findings which are required to be reported under
Section .510(a) of OMB Circular A-133:

(g) Major program:

(h) Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and
Type B programs:

(i) Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee under Section .530 of
OMB Circular A-133:
Findings Relating to the Financial Statements Reported in

Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

None reported

Unqualified opinion

None reported
None
None
None reported
Unqualified opinion
Yes. See 02-1
Federal Transit Cluster

(CFDA #20.507 and
20.500)

$465,769

No



CENTRAL OHIO TRANSIT AUTHORITY

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002

(02-1) Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Criteria:

OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement Section 3-L requires determination of whether the
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards includes all activity of the reporting period. A testing
procedure performed to meet this audit objective includes testing of a reconciliation of the Schedule of
Expenditures of Federal Financial Assistance to the General Ledger. :

Finding:

COTA has not timely reconciled the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards to the General Ledger
nor has an individual separate from the preparer reviewed the Schedule for accuracy on a timely basis.
The result is that it has been difficult and time consuming to reconcile the amounts and audit the amounts
involved. It has also resulted in audit adjustments.

Questioned Costs:

None

Recommendaﬁon:

We recommend COTA perform a timely reconciliation of the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal

Awards to the General Ledger and require an individual separate from the preparer of the Schedule of
Expenditures of Federal Awards review the Schedule for accuracy on a timely basis.



Summary Schedule of Prior Year Audit Findings

Number Finding Status Contact

01-1 COTA failed to perform a post Corrected. Ann Geter,
delivery audit on rolling stock Director of
purchased from New Flyer, Inc.. Purchasing




This Page is Intentionally Left Blank.



Central Ohio Transit
Authority

Financial Statements as of December 31, 2002
and 2001 and Independent Auditors’ Report



Central Ohio Transit Authority
Connecting Communities

1600 McKinley Avenue
Columbus, Ohio 43222
614.228.1776
www.cota.com

June 20, 2003

Board of Trustees of the

Central Ohio Transit Authority
and

Residents of Central Ohio:

The General Purpose Financial Statements of the Central Ohio Transit Authority (the
Authority) for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002, are hereby respectfully submitted.
These financial statements were prepared by the Finance Division and represent the
Authority’s commitment to provide accurate, concise and high quality financial information to
its Board of Trustees and interested parties or residents in its service area.

A Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) including the financial statements is also
prepared by the Authority and is available to the public. The CAFR contains financial
statements and statistical data that provide full disclosure of all the material financial
operations of the Authority.

The CAFR may be obtained by writing to Central Ohio Transit Authority, Attn: Finance
Division, 1600 McKinley Avenue, Columbus, Ohio 43222.

Wi Lotts-

Marion White
President/CEO CFO/Vice President of Finance

RLB/MW/dt

Board of Trustees
William G. Porter Il, Chair | Debra A. Payne,Vice Chair | Margery Amorose | William A, Anthony.Jr | Andy Geiger | Patrick M. Grabill | Tom Lussenhop |
Jares W, Rarey | Dan M. Reichard.]r | Bernard }.Scanlon | Emest L. Sullivan | Craig A Thomas | Robert [ Weiler, Sr. | Ronald L. Barnes, President/CEO




Deloitte & Touche LLP
155 East Broad Street
Columbus, Ohio 43215-3611

Tel:(614) 221-1000
Fax:(614) 229-4647
www.deloitte.com

Deloitte
&Touche

Board of Trustees
Central Ohio Transit Authority
Columbus, Ohio

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of Central Ohio Transit Authority (“COTA”) as of
December 31, 2002 and 2001, and the related statements of revenues, expenses and changes in equity,
and of cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of COTA’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of COTA as of December 31, 2002 and 2001, and the results of its operations and its
cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America. '

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated June 13, 2003 on
our consideration of COTAs internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants. That report is an integral part of an
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be read in conjunction
with this report in considering the results of our audit.

. ./
JM,“/mwéép

June 13, 2003
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CENTRAL OHIO TRANSIT AUTHORITY
Balance Sheets
December 31, 2002 and 2001

ASSETS 002 2001
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents ..........cooeiiiiiiiiininniniinnns $ 14,288,101 $ 11,329,754
Receivables:
T (e > T NS 10,471,892 11,312,175
Federal operating assiStance.........c..eeeevenienmnnennnnnenenn 514,527 575,314
State operating assiStancCe.........o.vrviiirerincarniia, - 1,002,550
(0111 PO PT PSPPSR 833,919 1,396,420
Inventory of materials and suppli€s...........ooveeieniiiiinii 2,511,644 2,172,138
(61115 ST PP 303,581 783,975
B Vo) 71 E PRSPPI, 28,923,664 28,572,326
RESTRICTED ASSETS:
Board restricted:
Cash and cash equivalents............cocoooiiiii e 4,768,753 17,640,715
f BINZoog0 1610 L T PP 11,233,315 -
Accrued interest receivable.....ocovriiiriniiiiiiiii 127,722 -
B 17 FR U IV P U PRSP 16,129,790 17,640,715
Restricted for capital grants:
Cash and cash equivalents...........ooviiiieiiieininiinnenn 4,098,070 633,713
Federal capital grants receivable........ocoeeivinnieieniiiinniins 133,182 1,024,266
State capital grants receivable........ooeiiiriieinniinnneriin 16,105 1,130,464
[ 171 O U SEO O SP PR RORUORO 4,247,357 2,788,443
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT:
COSE cveeneeeeteireeiesieeressresaesseseangesssnasesssaseenn et e b e sb e s b b e et nensaabenenanes 166,228,941 168,928,071
Less accumulated depreciation.........ocoevenvevmnicenienensnncnscnnen (84,155,678) (79,001,885)
B 171 FO OO PO PSRRI UOURON: 82,073,263 89,926,186
TOTAL ASSETS..ceeeieeerereneseesessresressessessisssessssnnssennns $ 131,374,074 $ 138,927,670
See notes to financial statements.
(continued)




CENTRAL OHIO TRANSIT AUTHORITY
Balance Sheets (continued)
December 31, 2002 and 2001

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 2002 | 001
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accrued payroll and fringe benefits.........oooceeemneiivniiinnenns $ 6,694,270 $ 6,217,385
Accounts payable........ ..ot s 2,561,407 2,900,408
Accrued payroll taXes.........ccoireerinieririnseisinnnsssse e 754,797 619,815
Estimated workers compensation claims................o.ooeein. 355,902 393,401
Other current HabilItIes......ouevieerivierereeeeecinreesienieeecrneeiesitensinnene 248,049 309,572
TOAL oottt eeeneeetreeresreebe s stsesseesbessseenerenesaeensesanenns 10,614,425 10,440,581

LIABILITIES PAYABLE FROM RESTRICTED ASSETS:

Estimated claims payable .........ccoovviininieininiiiiiceee 335,555 440,086
Accounts Payable - Grants..........cccceveniininneniinininnnenennnennen. 65,213 70,161
Tt eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeesreessressseesssberesnneasssesannesssessasessonnessns 400,768 510,247
TOtal THabIIItIES. ..ccivvrvreeeeiereeierreesinesrrrresieeestesoseeseneessssans 11,015,193 10,950,828
EQUITY:
Contributed capital:
Federal capital grants.........cccceevevrermeresieensennsienneeneinnenee. 45,272,359 45,272,359
State capital Grants........ccoeeeveiereiininiseenene s 3,012,158 3,012,158
Donated capital........ccoeoiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii 942,000 942,000
TOtAL et sre e ire e ertreesesesaesbaneennesentnsesesesnr e ssaaens 49,226,517 49,226,517
Retained €arnings .......c.oceveeevesvreesnnvnsiisiesiesienesieesessessesssssssssaennes 71,132,364 78,750,325
TOtal EQUILY...eoveeeereererreireicre et 120,358,881 127,976,842
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY ....eviviiiiiiiiiininnns $ 131,374,074 $ 138,927,670

See notes to financial statements.




CENTRAL OHIO TRANSIT AUTHORITY

Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Equity
Years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001

2002 2001
OPERATING REVENUES: )
Passenger fares for transit SEIVICE. ......ovvurieeererrnenissesesnisesenreeee 12,772,854 12,761,958
Special transit fares.........ccccvmneieninnen e 290,908 433,050
Charter SEIVICE TEVENUE.....cc.covvirererrereerrerseesssenesessesssssessesssassrssarsssses 18,028 21,348
Auxiliary transportation reVemNUE.........ocurveieeiresviesreieesissinene e 729,616 887,105
1) DSOS USROS 13,811,406 14,103,461
OPERATING EXPENSES OTHER THAN DEPRECIATION
| 0721 o o) OO VOO ORIt 32,589,595 34,036,782
Fringe benefits.......coueecerminiimiimnciie s 18,768,795 18,503,633
Materials and SUPPHES.....cevrverreceriiisiniersenire e enes 5,483,476 6,285,013
Purchased tranSportation............oeecmiriiieensesressessesssessersssenencenaes 3,876,524 4,077,362
BT VICES. ceererseseesrrrersresssstnrrsesaesssaessaaseressasarasesssessinssssrnstasassassesnnsnsasns 3,765,390 4,714,321
THLIEE@S. 1 eeveeeserereseessresesseesassreerseeesasasssassasnesasnessstesseensssssnsesannenenns 1,172,969 1,369,117
T XS ereeeeerereeseseseesesesaessnnsasesssasossssessasssssssnnssssnansssnsnennsennereserenenenans 620,586 696,416
Lea5eS aNd TENLALS ..c.evevvieereireeevrrreerieeeesreeesererreesaserneeenressbnranasans 558,418 398,535
Claims and insurance, net of settlements......cccc.coeeceeeiimrininnnciinenn 337,153 439,789
AAVETTISING. e vevereererieeeerereeriereesens e 229,112 638,110
MISCEIANEOUS. ..veerirnerecsrreeeeeeerrreeeesrnressraeesenneressssresaesernnsssasesesnnne 448,312 616,454
TO AL cvreererreeisrereiessereceibeeseseeessesessesanseesnneeansessssaesaresnanesunensnns 67,850,330 71,775,532
DEPRECIATION: 13,644,144 10,851,491
Total Operating eXpPenSes......ouumrirrurirerereesrseseeesesresesenesenes 81,494,474 82,627,023
EXCESS OF OPERATING EXPENSES INCLUDING
DEPRECIATION OVER OPERATING REVENUES................... (67,683,068) (68,523,562)
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
SALES tAX TEVEIIUES. ..eeerirriereserrrereersrseerarrreesossesssasssnessssnnmesarnsessrnssss 41,244,787 41,748,046
Federal operating grants and reimbursements .............ccovernennrencen 12,400,518 11,388,826
State operating grants, reimbursements and
special fare assistance .........ocovveveveniciieeini e 859,901 2,135,821
TNEETESE INCOIMIC. . vuvereeiereirurrerrrrrrereesaeerrerssesesmsnernesseseessssansssesnsnnnnes 899,678 1,309,535
Nontransportation and other revenue..........ocvevevreveneeeenniresnieennens 1,184,061 399,732
TOLAL ettt eee et e e e ee e tveeraesara s e sraesra e s s e s e e ne e e enen e 56,588,945 56,981,960
Loss before capital grants..........ccocceviiiiiiiiiiiininininn (11,094,123) (11,541,602)
Capital grants
Federal capital grants............cooviuiiiiiiiiiiiiiniins 3,125,130 23,475,497
State capital grants.........cocovvvieiiiiiiiinini 351,032 2,850,522
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN EQUITY
(carried forward to next page)...............ccccovevveiniinininnn (7,617,961) 14,784,417
See notes to financial statements.
(continued)




CENTRAL OHIO TRANSIT AUTHORITY
Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Equity (continued)
Years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001

2002 2001
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN EQUITY
(brought forward from Previous Page).............cocoveevsinieceiiiisininninn. $ (7,617,961) $ 14,784,417
EQUITY, BEGINNING OF YEAR ...ttt s 127,976,842 113,192,425
EQUITY, END OF YEAR......coitrtriitieeieninss st s s $ 120,358,881 $ 1‘27,976,842

See notes to financial statements.




CENTRAL OHIO TRANSIT AUTHORITY
Statements of Cash Flows
Years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001

2002 2001
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Excess of operating expenses including depreciation over
OPETALINE TEVEIUES. ....vocevceeriesssrresensesisssssssshsssses st s sb bbbt $ (67,683,068) $ (68,523,562)
Adjustments to reconcile to net cash used in operating activities: :
DEPIECIAtion EXPENSE. ...cvsvurverirerrinsrsisrsesescssmses ettt st 13,644,144 10,851,491
Change in assets and liabilities:
Sales tAX TECEIVADIE. ... ccviirieierieerrrees et ene b eat e ba et s s s n st st s s e 840,283 (269,609)
Accrued payroll and related taxes 611,867 745,730
Other nonoperating revenues, net 1,184,069 393,311
Estimated claims payable........c.covvveriimieieieiniiince s (142,030) 186,314
OthEr TECRIVADIES....c.veeviirereeerrrereiereseesersesnestnssassnnsersenss s sesssibesanatrars s as sas ves 562,501 98,166
TIVEIEOLY ....vvrvevseemeseeseconesestsesessasems s ssssenrasba s s s sttt b s s s ansa s s (339,506) 46,261
Accounts Payable.... ... (339,001) (1,335,703)
Other current liabilities (61,523) (15,025)
Other aSSetS.....coververeerereerenrrrsinesniernnenne 480,394 (275,862)
Total adjustments 16,441,198 10,425,074
Net cash used in operating aCtiVIties.....coovvereimieeriimiensricninceen e (51,241,870) (58,098,488)
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
GAlES TAKES TECEIVE™. cnvveieeveerereeeirsrrereiissesesesssnssnnressasesassresesssseessassesasaessseerrssssssnssessns 41,244,787 41,748,046
Federal operating assistance received........ccooevnivevinnnenn 12,461,305 11,313,854
State operating and other assistance received 1,862,451 4,266,097
Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities.......coocovcrerrecernreniiiinnnn. 55,568,543 57,327,997
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Federal capital grants reCeiVed.......uuuuiriniiuriininirnii et 4,016,214 27,114,411
State capital grants reCeiVEd.......oirerrummmrirrirrniassnneeccrcssi e 1,465,383 2,476,145
Acquisition and construction of fixed assets (5,796,169) (32,366,993)
Net cash used in capital and related financing activities.......c.ovevireieneccnnns (314,572) (2,776,437)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Interest received from INVESIIMENTS. ......eivvereerereeennererereessieriisttssis st ssssesseseenssnne 771,956 1,309,535
Purchases Of INVESHMENTS. .. ... oveivere e eteiiee et ae e e s v e e o aaen (11,233,315)
Net cash used in/provided by investing activities.........ocovennereenciiininn (10,461,359) 1,309,535
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS.......cooiiiniiieeenencinns (6,449,258) (2,237,393)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR ..., 29,604,182 31,841,575
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR......cccoviimimnncceneeeenccneene: $ 23,154,924 $ 29,604,182

See notes to financial statements.




CENTRAL OHIO TRANSIT AUTHORITY
Notes to Financial Statements
Years Ended December 31, 2002 and 2001

(1) Organization and Reporting Entity

(@)

(b

Organization

The Central Ohio Transit Authority (COTA or the Authority) is an independent,
special-purpose political subdivision of the State of Ohio. The Authority was created
on February 17, 1971, pursuant to Sections 306.30 through 306.53 of the Ohio
Revised Code for the purpose of providing public transportation in Central Ohio,
primarily Franklin County and surrounding areas. The Authority commenced
operations on January 1, 1974. As a political subdivision, the Authority is distinct
from, and is not an agency of, the State of Ohio or any other local governmental unit.

Under Ohio law, the Authority is authorized to levy a sales and use tax for transit
purposes, including both capital improvement and operating expenses, in 0.25%
increments up to a maximum rate of 1.5% if approved by a majority of the electors
residing within the territorial boundaries of the Authority. Such a sales and use tax is
in addifion to the sales and use taxes levied by the State of Ohio and Franklin County.
On November 5, 1999, the voters of Franklin County approved a permanent 0.25%
sales and use tax.

The Authority also has the power, under Section 306.40 of the Ohio Revised Code, to
levy and collect both voted (after agproval at an election) and unvoted ad valorem
taxes on all the taxable property within the territorial boundaries of the Authority, in
order to pay debt service on its bonds and notes issued in anticipation thereof. Ad
valorem taxes were not levied during fiscal years 2002 and 2001.

The Authority is governed by a 13-member Board of Trustees. Members are
appointed by the mayors of COTA’s chartering municipal corporations and by the
Franklin County Board of Commissioners and serve overlapping 3-year terms.

The Authority is not subject to federal or state income taxes.
Reporting Entity

The accompanying financial statements comply with the provisions of the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 14, The Financial
Reporting Entity. This statement requires that financial statements of the reporting
entity include all of the organizations, activities, functions and component units for
which the reporting entity is financially accountable. Financial accountability is
defined as the appointment of a voting majority of the component unit’s board and
either (1) the reporting entity’s ability to impose its will over the component unit, or
(2) the possibility that the component unit will provide a ﬁnancialpbeneﬁt to or
impose a financial burden on the reporting entity. COTA does not have financial
accountability over any entities. '

The City of Columbus (the City) is a related organization to COTA as the Mayor of
the City, with the approval of City Council, appoints a VOtiIl? majority of COTA’s
Board. However, the financial statements of COTA are not included within the City’s
“Reporting Entity” as the City cannot impose its will and there is no financial benefit
or financial burden relationship between the City and COTA.

(continued)




CENTRAL OHIO TRANSIT AUTHORITY
Notes to Financial Statements
Years Ended December 31, 2002 and 2001

(2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(a)

(®)

(©

Basis of Accounting

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of
accounting, whereby revenues and expenses are recognized in the period earned or
incurred. All transactions are accounted for in a single enterprise fund.

Pursuant to GASB Statement No.20 Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Proprietary Funds and Other Governmental Entities that Use Proprietary Fund
Accounting the Authority follows GASB guidance as applicable to proprietary funds
and Financial Accounting Standards Board Statements and Interpretations,
Accounting Principles Board Opinions and Accounting Research Bulletins issued on
or before November 30, 1989, that do not conflict with or contradict GASB
pronouncements.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Authority considers all highly liquid
investments (including restricted assets) with a maturity of three months or less when
purchased to be cash equivalents.

Grants and Assistance

The federal government, through the Federal Transit Administration (FTA), and the
Ohio Department of Transportation (ODOT) provide financial assistance and make
grants directly to the Authority for operations and the acquisition of property and
equipment. Grants for operating assistance and preventative maintenance are recorded
as revenues during the entitlement period to which the grants apply.

(d) Investments

(e

®

Pursuant to GASB Statement No. 31, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Certain Investments and External Investment Pools, investments are carried at fair
value based on quoted market prices. Any unrealized gains or losses re recognized as
adjustments to investment income. The Authority’s policy is to hold investment
securities to their scheduled maturity date.

Inventory of Materials and Supplies

Inventory items are stated at average cost. Inventory generally consists of maintenance
parts and supplies for transportation equipment.

Restricted Assets
Restricted assets consist of monies and other resources that are restricted by the

Authority’s Board of Trustees or capital grants for specified purposes. These
restrictions are described below:

(continued)




CENTRAL OHIO TRANSIT AUTHORITY
Notes to Financial Statements
Years Ended December 31, 2002 and 2001

(@

Board Restricted Assets — These assets are restricted for the payment of public
liability claims under the Authority’s self-insurance program and for future capital
expenditures.

Restricted for Capital Grant Expenditures — These assets are restricted under
the Authority’s capital grants for certain capital projects. The Authority also
includes in restricted capital grant assets amounts relating to its local share
requirements for active capital grants. .

Property and Depreciation

Property and equipment are stated at historical cost and include expenditures that
substantially increase the useful lives of existing assets. Routine maintenance and
repairs are expensed as incurred.

Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful
lives of the respective assets, as follows:

Description Years
Land and leasehold improvements 5-20
Buildings and improvements 2040
Revenue vehicles 4-12
Transit shelters 5-8
Other equipment 3-10

Assets acquired with capital grants are included in prc%perty and e(ci[uipment and
depreciation on those assets is included in the statements of revenues and expenses.

(h) Estimated Claims Payable

®

0

The Authority has a self-insurance program for public liability, personal injury,
property damage and worker’s compensation (see note 8). Claims are accrued in the
year the expenses are incurred, based upon estimates of the claim liabilities made by
management and the legal counsel of the Authority. Also provided for are estimates of
claims incurred during the year but not yet reported. These estimates are based on past
experience and current outstanding claims.

Compensated Absences

The Authority accrues vacation and sick pay benefits as earned by its employees.
Passenger Fares

Passenger fares are recorded as revenue at the time services are performed.

(continued)
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CENTRAL OHIO TRANSIT AUTHORITY
Notes to Financial Statements
Years Ended December 31, 2002 and 2001

)

]

(m)

Budgetary Accounting and Control

The Authority’s annual budget is prepared on the accrual basis of accounting as
permitted by law. The Authority maintains budgetary control by not permitting total
expenditures to exceed total appropriations without approval of the Board of Trustees.

Use of Estimates

The accounting and reporting policies of COTA conform to accounting principles
%enerally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP). The preparation of
inancial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and disclosure of contingent assets and labilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Nonexchange Transactions

Effective’ January 1, 2001, the Authority implemented GASB Statement No. 33,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Nonexchange Transactions, and GASB
Statement No. 36, Recipient Reporting for Certain Nonexchange Revenues (an
amendment of GASB No. 33). In general, GASB Nos. 33 and 36 establish
accounting and financial reporting standards for nonexchange transactions involving
financial or capital resources. In a nonexchange transaction, an entity gives (or
receives) value without directly receiving or giving equal value in return.

The Authority’s principal nonexchange transactions involve the receipt of federal,
state and local grants for operating assistance as well as the acquisition of property,
facilities and equipment.  Substantially all of the Alft(%lority’s grants are
reimbursement-type grants, which are recorded as revenue in the period the related
expenditures are incurred. Any grants received in advance of the period in which the
related expenditures are incurred, are recorded as restricted assets and as deferred
grant revenue until the expenditures are incurred.

(n) New Accounting Pronouncements

GASB recently issued Statements No. 34, Basic Financial Statements-and
Management’s Discussion and Analysis-for State and Local Governments, No. 37,
Basic Financial Statements—and Management’s Discussion and Analysis-for State
and Local Governments: Omnibus, and No. 38, Certain Financial Statement Note
Disclosures. The Authority has not elected early implementation of these statements
in 2002. The Authority is required to implement GASB Statement No. 34 by 2003.

The Authority has not completed the process of evaluating the impact of adopting
these statements, and therefI())re is unable to disclose the impact that adopting these
statements will have on its financial position and results of operations when such
statements are implemented.

(continued)
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CENTRAL OHIO TRANSIT AUTHORITY
Notes to Financial Statements
Years Ended December 31, 2002 and 2001

©))

(0) Reclassifications

Reclassifications have been made to the 2001 amounts to conform with the
presentation of the 2002 amounts.

Cash and Investments

The investment and deposit of Authority monies are governed by the provisions of the
Ohio Revised Code. In accordance with these statutes, only financial institutions located in
Ohio are eligible to hold public deposits. The statutes also permit the Authority to invest
its monies in certificates of deposit, savings accounts, money market accounts, the State
Treasurer’s Asset Reserve investment pool (STAR Ohio), and obligations of the United
States government or certain agencies thereof. The Authority may also enter into
repurchase agreements with any eligible depository for a period not exceeding 30 days.

STAR Ohio is an investment pool managed by the State Treasurer’s Office, which allows
governments within the State to pool their funds for investment purposes. STAR Ohio is
not registered with the Securities Exchange Commission as an investment company, but
does operate in a manner similar to Rule 2a7 of the Investment Company Act of 1940.
Investments in STAR Ohio are valued at STAR Ohio’s share price, which is the price the
investment could be sold for on December 31, 2002.

Public depositories must give security for all public funds on deposit. These institutions
may either specifically collateralize individual accounts in addition to amounts insured by
the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC), or may pledge a pool of government
securities valued at least 105% of the total value of public monies on deposit at the
institution. Repurchase agreements must be secured by the specific government securities
upon which the repurchase agreements are based. These securities must be obligations of
or guaranteed by tlrm)e United States and mature or be redeemable within 5 years of the date
of the related repurchase agreement. State law does not require security for public deposits
and investments to be maintained in the Authority’s name. Investments in stripped
principal or interest obligations, reverse repurchase agreements, and derivatives are
prohibited.

During 2002 and 2001, the Authority complied with the provisions of these statutes.
(a) Deposits With Financial Institutions

At December 31, 2002, the carrying amount of the Authority’s deposits with financial
institutions was $4,882,057 and the bank balance was $5,710,792. The difference
results mainly from outstanding checks. In addition, the Authority had $6,923 of cash
on hand. $100,000 was insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation
(Category 1 as defined by the GASB) and $5,610,792 was collateralized by a pool of
securities maintained by the Authority’s financial institutions but not in the
Authority’s name (Category 3 as defined by the GASB).

(continued)
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CENTRAL OHIO TRANSIT AUTHORITY
Notes to Financial Statements
Years Ended December 31, 2002 and 2001

(b) Investments and Other Deposits

The Authority’s investments are detailed below and categorized in accordance with
the criteria established by the GASB to give an indication of the level of risk assumed
as of December 31, 2002. Category | includes investments that are insured or
registered or for which the securities are held by the Authority or its agent in the
Authority’s name. Category 2 includes investments that are uninsured and
unregistered for which the securities are held by the counterparty’s trust department or
agent in the Authority’s name. Category 3 includes uninsured and unregistered
investments for which securities are held by the counterparty or by its trust
department or agent but not in the Authority’s name. Deposits and equities in pools
of funds managed by other governmental units are not categorized.

As of December 31, 2002 and 2001, the Authority held equity of $18,265,944 and
$28,746,688 in the STAR Ohio investment pool. This investment has not been
categorized based on a custodial risk because it is not a security. The relationship
between the Authority and the investment asset is a direct contractual relationship and
the investments evidence ownership or creditorship.

Investments held as of December 31, 2002:

Category Reported/

Description 1 2 3 Fair Value
p

U.S. Treasury notes and
federal agency obligations $- $- $11,233,315 $11,233,315
Equity in the state
treasurer’s investment pool $18.265.944
(Star Ohio)
Total investments $29.499.259

(4) Board Restricted Assets

Board restricted assets comprise the following:

_ December31,
2002 2001
Restricted for self-insurance $12,559,970 $ 12,010,382
Restricted for capital expenditures -3,569,820 5,630,333
Total Board restricted $16,129,790 $ 17,640,715
(continued)
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CENTRAL OHIO TRANSIT AUTHORITY
Notes to Financial Statements
Years Ended December 31, 2002 and 2001

)

©)

Property and Equipment
The cost of property and equipment is comprised of the following:

December 31,

2002 2001
Land $ 5,150,657 $ 5,168,315
Land and leasehold improvements 8,945,518 12,733,953
Buildings and improvements 38,629,034 29,588,651
Revenue vehicles 77,057,379 79,786,380
Transit shelters 2,948,428 2,935,998
Other equipment 31,573,940 33,329,524
Construction in progress 1,923,986 5,385,250
Total Cost 166,228,941 168,928,071
Accumulated Depreciation (84,155,678) (79,001,885)
Total Net Book Value $_82.073.263 $_89.926,186

Leases

COTA leases certain property and office equipment under operating leases. Future
minimum payments, by year, and in the aggregate, under these leases with initial or
remaining terms of one year or more, consisted of the following at December 31, 2002:

Commitments under

Operating Leases

2003 $ 526,143
2004 525,806
2005 448,568
2006 296,637
2007 198,320
Thereafter -

Total minimum lease payments $ 1,995,474

Rentallexpense for all operating leases was approximately $534,000 in 2002 and $315,000
in 2001.

{continued)
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CENTRAL OHIO TRANSIT AUTHORITY
Notes to Financial Statements
Years Ended December 31, 2002 and 2001

(7) Grants, Reimbursements and Special Fare Assistance

Grants, reimbursements and special fare assistance included in the statements of revenues
and expenses for the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, consist of the following:

2002 2001

Federal: _ ‘
FTA Operating Assistance $12,400,518 $11,388,826
FTA Capital Assistance 3125130

Total $15,525,648  $34,864,323
State:
ODOT Olperating Assistance $ 1,710 $ 1,215,206
ODOT Elderly and Disabled Fare Assistance 305,674 304,152
ODOT Fuel Tax Reimbursement 552,517 616,463
ODOT Capital Assistance _ 351,032 2,850,522
Total $1,210,933 $.4,986,343

(8) Risk Management

COTA is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft or destruction of assets,
injuries to employees and natural disasters.

COTA is self-insured for all public liability, personal injury and property damage claims.

The estimated liability for such claims of $335,555 at December 31, 2002, and $440,086

at December 31, 2001, are included in liabilities payable from restricted assets in the

accompanying balance sheets. At December 31, 2002, and 2001, $12,559,970 and

$12,010,382, respectively, were restricted by the Board of Trustees to fund the self-

%)nslurancehpro gram. Such funds are included in board-restricted assets in the accompanying
alance sheets.

Prior to June 30, 1998, COTA was insured through the State of Ohio Bureau of Workers’
Compensation (BWC) for injuries to its employees. On July 1, 1998, the Authority entered
into an agreement with the BWC to become self-insured for claims pertaining to work-
related injuries to Authority employees occurring on or after that date. The BWC agreed to
continue to administer and pay all compensation claims arising on or before June 30,
1998. The estimated liability for all such claims occurring since July 1, 1998, is $355,902
at December 31, 2002, and is included as a liability in the accompanying balance sheet.

The general claims liability was calculated by establishing reserves on a case-by-case basis
after analysis by in-house counsel and outside attorneys. The workers’ compensation
liability was determined by analyzing claim lag information provided by COTA third party
administrators. A summary of changes in self-insurance claims liability for the years ended
December 31, 2002 and 2001 follows:

(continued)
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CENTRAL OHIO TRANSIT AUTHORITY
Notes to Financial Statements
Years Ended December 31, 2002 and 2001

®

General Workers’
_Liability
Claims liability at December 31, 2000 $ 287,173 $ 360,000
Incurred claims, net of favorable settlements 395,751 323,035
Claims paid -(242,838) ]
Claims liability at December 31, 2001 440,086 393,401
Incurred claims, net of favorable settlements 131,525 305,171
Claims paid _(236,056) (342,670)
Claims liability at December 31, 2002 $ _335555 % 355,902

Defined Benefit Pension Plan

(@)

()

Plan Description

COTA contributes to the Ohio Public Employees Retirement System (OPERS), a cost
sharing, and multiple-employer public employee retirement system. OPERS provides
retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living adjustments and death benefits
to plan members and beneficiaries. Chapter 145 of the Ohio Revised Code (ORC)
assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the OPERS Board
of Trustees (Board). OPERS issues a stand-alone financial report that includes the
financial statements. That report may be obtained bg writing to Public Employees
Retirement System, 277 East Town Street, Columbus, Ohio, 43215-4642, or by
calling 1-614-222-6705 or 1-800-222-PERS (7377).

Funding Policy

Plan members are required to contribute 8.5% of their annual covered salary and
COTA is required to contribute an actuarially determined rate. The 2002 and 2001
employer contribution rate for local government employer units was 13.55% of
annual covered 1paymll. The Board instituted a temporary employer contribution rate
rollback for calendar year 2000. The rate rollback was 20% for state and local
government divisions.” The 2000 rate unit was 10.84% of covered payroll. The
contribution requirements of plan members and COTA are establisheé) and may be
amended by the Board. COTA’s contributions to OPERS for the years ending
December 31, 2002, 2001, and 2000 were approximately $5,019,000, $5,042,000, and -
$3,774,000, respectively, equal to the required contributions for each year. Required
emp%oyer contributions are equal to 100% of the dollar amount billed to each
employer.

(continued)
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CENTRAL OHIO TRANSIT AUTHORITY
Notes to Financial Statements
Years Ended December 31, 2002 and 2001

(c) Other Post-employment Benefits

OPERS also provides post-retirement health care coverage to age and service retirees
with 10 or more years of qualifying Ohio service credit. Health care coverage for
disability recipients and primary survivor recipients is available. The health care
coverage provided by the retirement system is considered an Other Post-employment
Benefit (OPEB) as” described in GASB Statement No. 12. A portion of each
employer’s contribution to OPERS is set aside for funding of the post-retirement
health” care. The Ohio Revised Code provides statutory authority for employer
contributions. The employer contribution rate was rolled back for the year 2000. For
local government employer units, the 2002 rate was 13.55% of covered payroll; and
5.00% was the portion that was used to fund health care for the year. COTA’s
contributions actually made to fund post-employment benefits totaled $1,852,000 in
2002 and $1,600,100 in 2001.

The Ohio Revised Code provides the statutory authority requiring public employers to
fund post-retirement health care through their contributions to OPERS.

Summary of assumptions:

Actuarial Review — The assumptions and calculations below were based on the
System’s latest Actuarial Review performed as of December 31, 2001.

Funding Method — An entry age normal actuarial cost method of valuation is used in
determining the present value of OPEB. The difference between assumed and actual
fx elrience (actuarial gains and losses) becomes part of unfunded actuarial accrued
iability.

Assets Valuation Method — All investments are carried at market value. For actuarial
valuation purposes, a smoothed market approach is used. Under this approach assets
are adjusted annually to reflect 25% of unrealized market appreciation or depreciation
on investment assets.

Investment Return — The investment assumption rate for 2001 was 8.00%.

Active Employee Total Payroll — An annual increase of 4.00% compounded annually, is
the base portion of the individual pay increase assumption. This assumes no change in
the number of active employees. Additionally, annual pay increases, over and above
the 4.00% base increase, were assumed to range from 0.50% to 6.30%.

Health Care — Health care costs were assumed to increase 4.00% annually.

OPEBs are advanced funded on an actuarially determined basis. The number of active
participating participants at December 31, 2001, was 402,041. The actuarial value of the
Retirement System’s net assets available for OPEB at December 31, 2001 was $11.6
billion. The actuarially accrued liability and the unfunded actuarial accrued liability, based
on the actuarial cost method used, were $16.4 billion and $2.6 billion, respectively.

(continued)
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10

In December 2001, the Board adopted the Health Care “Choices” Plan in its continuing
effort to respond to the rise in the cost of Health Care. The Choices Plan will be offered to
all person newly hired under OPERS after January 1, 2003, with no prior service credit
accumulated toward health care coverage. Choices, as the name suggests, will incorporate
a cafeteria approach, offering a more broad range of health care options. The Plan uses a
graded scale from ten to thirty years to calculate a monthly health care benefit. This is in
contrast to the ten-year “cliff” eligibility standard for the present Plan. .

The benefit recipient will be free to select the option that best meets their needs.
Recipients will fund health care costs in excess of their monthly health care benefit. The
Plan will also offer a spending account feature, enabling the benefit recipient to apply their
allowance toward specific medical expenses, much like a Medical Spending Account.

Contingent Liabilities
(a) Litigation

It is the Authority’s policy to act as self-insurer for certain insurable risks consisting
l;;rima;m'ly of public liability and ;‘))roperty damage. At December 31, 2002, COTA has

een named 1n various public liability and property damage claims and suits, some of
which seek significant damages. The ultimate outcome otg the claims and suits cannot
be determined; however, it is the opinion of management that any resulting liability to
the Authority in excess of that provided for in the accompanying balance sheet will
not have a material adverse effect on the Authority’s financial position.

(b) Federal and State Grants

Under the terms of the Authority’s various grants, periodic audits are required where
certain costs could be questioned as not being an eligible expenditure under the terms
of the grants. At December 31, 2002, there were no material questioned costs that had
not been resolved with appropriate federal and state agencies. Questioned costs could
still be identified during audits to be conducted in the future. In the opinion of
COTA’s management, no material grant expenditures will be disallowed.

FTA grant stipulations also require the granter to retain assets acquired by FTA funds

for the full estimated asset until life (as determined by the FTA). If this provision is
not met, the granter must refund FTA’s un-depreciated basis in assets disposed.

(continued)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING BASED UPON THE AUDIT PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Trustees
Central Ohio Transit Authority

and

The Honorable Betty Montgomery
Auditor of State:

We have audited the financial statements of the Central Ohio Transit Authority (COTA) as of and for the
year ended December 31, 2002, and have issued our report thereon dated June 13, 2003. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States.

COMPLIANCE

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether COTAs financial statements are free of material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts,
and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was
not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests
disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards. However, we noted certain immaterial instances of noncompliance, which we have presented
to management of COTA in a separate letter dated June 13, 2003.

INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

In planning and performing our audit, we considered COTA’s internal control over financial reporting in
order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial
statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control over financial reporting. Our
consideration of the internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all matters in
the internal control over financial reporting that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a

Deloitte
Touche
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condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not
reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements in amounts that would be material in relation to
the financial statements being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees
in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the internal
control over financial reporting and its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
we noted certain matters involving the internal control over financial reporting, which we have presented
to management of COTA in a separate letter dated June 13, 2003.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the board of trustees and management of

COTA, the Ohio Auditor of State, and the federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not
intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

JM— flwuf

June 13, 2003
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INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS’ REPORT

To the Board of Trustees
Central Ohio Transit Authority:

We understand that the Central Ohio Transit Authority (the “Authority”) is eligible to receive Urbanized
Area Formula Program grants of the Federal Transit Act, as amended, and in connection therewith, the
Authority is required to report certain information to the Federal Transit Administration (FTA).

The FTA has established the following standards with regard to the data reported to it in the Federal
Funding Allocation Statistics Form (FFA 10) of the Authority’s annual National Transit Database (NTD)
report:

A system is in place and maintained for recording data in accordance with NTD definitions. The
correct data is being measured and no systematic errors exist.

A system is in place to record data on a continuing basis and the data gathering is an ongoing effort.
Source documents are available to support the reported data and are maintained for FTA review and
audit for a minimum of three years following the FTA’s receipt of the NTD report. The data is fully
documented and securely stored.

A system of internal controls is in place to ensure the accuracy of the data collection process and that
the recording system and reported amounts are not altered. Documents are reviewed and signed by a
supervisor, as required.

The data collection methods are those suggested by the FTA or meet FTA requirements.

The deadhead miles, computed as the difference between the reported total actual vehicle miles data
and the reported total actual vehicle revenue miles data, appear to be accurate.

Data is consistent with prior reporting periods and other facts known about the Authority’s operations.

We have applied the procedures to the data contained in the accompanying Federal Funding Allocation
Statistics Form (901) for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002. Such procedures, which were agreed
to and specified by FTA in the Declarations section of the 2002 Reporting Manual and were agreed to by
the Authority, were applied to assist you in evaluating whether the Authority complied with the standards

described in the second paragraph of this report and that the information included in the NTD report
Federal Funding Allocation Statistics Form (FFA 10) for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002 is
presented in conformity with the requirements of the Uniform System of Accounts and Records and

Deloitte
Touche
Tohmatsu



Reporting System: Final Rule, as specified in 49 CFS Part 630, Federal Register, January 15, 1993 and as
presented in the 2002 Reporting Manual.

This engagement to apply agreed-upon procedures was performed in accordance with standards established
by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The sufficiency of the procedures is solely the
responsibility of the specified users of the report. Consequently, we make no representation regarding the
sufficiency of the procedures described above either for the purpose for which this report has been requested
or for any other purpose. This report is intended solely for your information and FTA and should not be used
by those who did not participate in determining the procedures.

The procedures were applied separately to each of the information systems used to develop the reported
vehicle revenue miles, passenger miles, and operating expenses of the Authority for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2002 for each of the following modes:

e Motor Bus - directly operated
¢ Demand Response - purchased transportation

The following information and findings came to our attention as a result of performing the procedures
described in the Attachment to this report:

None

The agreed-upon procedures are substantially less in scope than an examination, the objective of which is an
expression of an opinion on the Federal Funding Allocation Statistics Form (901). Accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion. Also, we do not express an opinion on the Authority’s system of internal control
taken as a whole.

In performing the procedures, except for the information and findings described above, no matters came to
our attention that caused us to believe that the information included in the NTD report on the Federal Funding
Allocation Statistics Form (FFA 10) for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002 is not presented in
conformity with the requirements of the Uniform System of Accounts and Records and Reporting System,
Final Rule, as specified in 49 CFR Part 630, Federal Register, January 15, 1993 and as presented in the 2002
Reporting Manual. Had we performed additional procedures, other matters might have come to our attention
that would have been reported to you.

This report relates only to the information described above and does not extend to the Authority’s financial
statements taken as a whole, or the forms in the Authority’s NTD report, other than the Federal Funding
Allocation Statistics Form (FFA 10), for any date or period.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Authority’s management, the Ohio Auditor of
State and federal agencies and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these
specified parties.

Daletin U Tombe Lep

June 13, 2003



SECTION 9 CERTIFICATION — AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES

Discussed procedures related to the system for reporting and maintaining data in accordance with the
NTD requirements and definitions set forth in 49CFR, Part 630, Federal Register, January 15, 1993 and
as prescribed in the 2002 Reporting Manual, with the personnel assigned responsibility of supervising the
preparation and maintenance of NTD data.

Discussed the procedures with the personnel assigned responsibility of supervising the preparation and
maintenance of NTD data to determine:

e The extent to which the Authority followed the procedures on a continuous basis, and

e  Whether they believe such procedures result in accumulation and reporting of data consistent with the
NTD definitions and requirements set forth in 49CFR, Part 630, Federal Register, January 15, 1993,
and as prescribed in the 2002 Reporting Manual.

Inquired of the same person concerning the retention policy that is followed by the Authority with respect
to source documents supporting the NTD data reported on the Federal Funding Allocation Statistics Form
(FFA 10).

Based on a description of the Authority’s procedures obtained in Items 1 and 2 above, identified all the
source documents which are to be retained by the Authority for a minimum of three years.

For each type of source document, selected the months of February, June and September and observed
that each type of source document exists for each of these periods.

Discussed the system of internal controls with the person responsible for supervising and maintaining the
NTD data. Inquired whether individuals, independent of the individuals preparing the source documents
and posting the data summaries, review the source documents and data summaries for completeness,
accuracy and reasonableness and how often such reviews are performed.

Reviewed selected source documents and ascertained whether supervisor’s signatures were present as
required by the system of internal controls.

Obtained the worksheets utilized by the Authority to prepare the final data which are transcribed on to the
Federal Funding Allocation Statistics Form (FFA 10). Compared the periodic data included on the
worksheets to the periodic summaries prepared by the Authority. Tested the arithmetical accuracy of the
summarizations.

Discussed the Authority’s procedures for accumulating and recording passenger mile data in accordance
with NTD requirements with the Authority’s staff, noting that the Authority uses an estimate of passenger
miles based on statistical sampling meeting the FTA’s 95% confidence and 10% precision requirements.
The Authority uses an alternative sampling procedure and, therefore, we inquired whether the procedure
has been approved by the FTA.

Discussed with the Authority’s staff the Authority’s eligibility to conduct statistical sampling for
passenger mile data every third year. Determined whether the Authority meets one of the three criteria
which allow reporters to conduct statistical samples for accumulating passenger mile data every third year
rather than annually. However, the Authority has elected to conduct statistical samples on an annual
basis.



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

Obtained a description of the sampling procedures for estimation of passenger mile data used by the
Authority. We were informed that the Authority’s sampling procedures for the estimation of passenger
mile data is substantially as described in the Authority’s letter, submitted to FTA, dated April 27, 1987.
We noted no exceptions to the stated sampling procedures described in the above letter.

Examined the passenger mile sample information generated from the automatic passenger count system
and, based on this information, proved the computation of passenger miles for the year ended
December 31, 2002.

Discussed the procedures for systematic exclusion of charter, school bus and other ineligible vehicle
miles from the calculation of vehicle revenue miles with the Authority’s staff and determined that stated
procedures are followed.

For vehicle revenue mile data, documented the collection and recording methodology and determmed that
deadhead miles are systematically excluded from the computation.

Compared operating expenses with audited financial data, after reconciling items are removed.

Noted that COTA purchased transportation services and inquired of the personnel responsible for
reporting the NTD data regarding the disposition of purchased transportation generated fare revenues.
Specifically, determined that some purchased transportation fare revenues were retained by the contract
service provider. Obtained documentation of retained fare revenue amounts that are reported by the
contract service provider and agreed the total of all purchased transportation fare revenues to the fare
revenues reported on Form 002.

Obtained a copy of the purchased transportation contract and ascertained that the contract (1) specified
the specific mass transportation services to be provided by the contractor; (2) specified the monetary
consideration obligated by the agency contracting for the service; (3) specified the period covered by the
contract and that this period is the same as, or a portion of,, the period covered by the agency’s NTD
Report; and (4) was signed by representatives of both parties to the contract. Inquired of the person
responsible for maintaining the NTD data regarding the retention of the executed contract, and
ascertained that copies of the contracts are retained for three years.

Compared the data reported on the Federal Funding Allocation Statistics Form (FFA 10) to comparable
data for the prior report year and calculated the percentage change from the prior year to the current year.
Noted that no vehicle revenue mile, passsenger mile, or operating expense data increased or decreased by
more than 10% relative to the prior reporting period.

The following 2002 Reporting Manual Section 9 test procedures were not applicable to the Authority and,
therefore, were not performed:

e Reporting Manual Section 9 Data Certification Procedures “n”, “0”, “p”, “q”, “r”, “s”, “v”, and “x.”
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Central Ohio Transit Authority
Connecting Communities

1600 McKinley Avenue
Columbus, Ohio 43222
614.275.5800
www.cota.com

June 26, 2003

Board of Trustees of the

Central Ohio Transit Authority
and

Residents of Central Ohio:

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the Central Ohio Transit Authority (the
Authority) for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002, is hereby respectfully submitted. This
CAFR was prepared by the Finance Division and represents the Authority’s commitment to
provide accurate, concise and high quality financial information to its Board of Trustees and
interested parties or residents in its service area.

The presentation of this CAFR contains financial statements and statistical data that provide full
disclosure of all the material financial operations of the Authority. The financial statements,
supplemental schedule, statistical information and all data contained herein are the
representations of the Authority’s management. The Authority’s management bears the
responsibility for the accuracy, completeness and fairness of the CAFR presentation.

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA)
awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the Central Ohio
Transit Authority for its comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2001. This was the thirteenth consecutive year that the Central Ohio Transit
Authority has achieved this prestigious award. In order to be awarded a Certificate of
Achievement, a government unit must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized
comprehensive annual financial report. This report must satisfy both generally accepted
accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current
comprehensive annual financial report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement
Program’s requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for
another certificate.

Board of Trustees
William G. Porter I, Chair | Debra A, Payne,Vice Chair | Margery Amorose | William A Anthony. Jr. | Andy Geiger | Patrick ™M, Grabill | Tom Lussenhop |
James W, Rarey | Dan M. Reichard, Jr. | Bernard | Scanlon | Ernest L. Sullivan | Craig A.Thomas | Robert | Weiler St | Ronald L. Barnes, President/CEO

(continued)




LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL

This CAFR is divided into the following three sections:

Introductory Section — contains this Letter of Transmittal, a Table of Organization, a listing of
the members of the Board of Trustees and Senior Management, and a reproduction of the
Certificate of Achievement awarded to the Authority by the GFOA for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2001.

Financial Section — includes the Independent Auditors’ Report, the financial statements (with
related footnotes) for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, and a supplemental
schedule disclosing actual revenues, expenses and changes in equity for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2002, compared to budgeted amounts. ' :

Statistical Section - provides financial, economic and demographic information useful for
indicating historical trends for comparative fiscal periods.

REPORTING ENTITY

General

The Authority’s reporting entity has been defined in accordance with Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) Statement Number 14. The financial statements contained within this
CAFR include all of the organizations, activities, functions and component units for which the
Authority is financially accountable. Financial accountability is defined as the appointment ofa
voting majority of the component unit’s board and either 1) the reporting entity’s ability to
impose its will over the component unit or 2) the possibility that the component unit will provide
a financial benefit to or impose a financial burden on the reporting entity. On this basis, the
Authority does not have financial accountability over any other entity, and no governmental units
other than the Authority itself are included in the reporting entity. Furthermore, the Authority is
not included as a component unit in the reporting entity of any other governmental unit’s
financial statements. A complete discussion of the Authority’s reporting entity is included in
Footnote 1 to the financial statements.

The Central Ohio Transit Authority is an independent political subdivision of the State of Ohio
with its own taxing power. The Authority is not dependent upon appropriations from Franklin
County, the City of Columbus, or any other political subdivision for local funding. The
Authority is empowered by the Ohio Revised Code to issue general obligation debt secured by
its own taxing power.

The Authority was created by an agreement executed on February 17, 1971, with Franklin
County and the cities of Bexley, Columbus, Gahanna, Grandview Heights, Grove City, Hilliard,
Reynoldsburg, Upper Arlington, Westerville, Whitehall and Worthington. The Authority’s
territorial boundaries are conterminous with Franklin County, except for a small portion of the
Authority’s territory in adjacent Delaware, Fairfield and Licking Counties.

(continued)
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Commencement of Operations

A purchase agreement was executed on June 29, 1973, providing terms for the transfer of the
properties, rights and obligations of the Columbus Transit Company (a now-defunct subsidiary
of the American Electric Power Company) to the Authority. An interim operating agreement
permitted the Columbus Transit Company to continue to provide transit services until December
31, 1973. The Authority commenced operations on January 1, 1974.

Facilities Owned

1600 McKinley Avenue was constructed in 1980 and is the site of the Authority’s
administration headquarters. This facility also houses both heavy (major) and light (routine) bus
maintenance operations, and has indoor storage capacity for 240 buses.

1333 Fields Avenue opened in September 1984 and provides indoor storage for 200 buses and
light maintenance work areas. It features advanced technology in the areas of ventilation, energy
conservation and maintenance. The radio control room is also housed at this facility.

Linden Transit Center is a 20,500 square foot facility located at the corner of Cleveland, and
11™ Avenues that opened for service in October 1999. The transit center houses a medical
center, a day care center, and a bank, as well as other amenities. Nine bus routes presently serve
the transit center as well as the Linden LINK neighborhood circulator route, which provides
improved neighborhood transportation and connections to COTA’s fixed route services. Express
routes serving the Linden Transit Center also provide vital connections to job centers around the
1-270 Outerbelt, such as the Polaris area located in Delaware County just north of I-71 and I-270,
and the Easton development area near Morse Road and I-270.

Easton Transit Center is a 1,352 square foot facility located just north of Morse Road at the
southeast comer of Transit Drive and Stelzer Road that opened for service in May 2002. This
transit center helps COTA serve commuters in northeastern Franklin County. The project is
being built in phases, and also includes an 8,953 square foot overhead canopy with 4 bus bays, a
50-space park and ride lot, a day care center, and other passenger amenities.

North Terminal is located on Spring Street between High and Front Streets in downtown
Columbus. This terminal has six bays for express routes, and presently nine express routes use
the terminal to serve passengers in the north downtown area.

Facilities Leased

City Center Terminal is a 41,000 square foot facility completed and opened for service in
November 1989. The terminal is located in the downtown City Center Parking Garage between
Rich and Main Streets. Elevators and escalators provide pedestrian and disabled access to the
terminal from all floors in the City Center Mall. Presently twenty-one express routes use this
terminal. ‘

(continued)
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60 East Broad Street in downtown Columbus houses the COTA Connection. The COTA
Connection is the main sales outlet for passes and tickets and is the location where passengers
are photographed for Senior Discount Cards, Key Cards and ADA Cards. This office provides
route information through the distribution of published maps and timetables, and maintains a
staff of service representatives (from 6:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m. weekdays) as well as an interactive
voice response system to assist customer queries on the Authority’s telephone information line
(228-1776).

1650 Lake Shore Drive houses the Business Development division of COTA. As COTA began
its course towards the successful implementation of the Visions 2020 Plan, additional office
space was required for staff working on new projects. As a result, in April 2001, COTA
relocated its Business Development division to Lake Shore Drive, occupying 9,659 square foot
of leased office space. Departments within the Business Development division include Planning,
Scheduling, and Corporate Communications.

101 Phillipi Road opened in May 2002 and houses the Paratransit Services division of COTA in
a leased 22,282 square foot building. The purpose of the facility is to operate Project
Mainstream dispatch and reservation activities, and to store and maintain COTA-owned Project
Mainstream vehicles.

Services
The Central Ohio Transit Authority’s mission and vision statements are respectively:

To provide customer-focused mobility solutions for Central Ohio communities
through strategic partnerships, innovative planning, and implementation options.

The Central Ohio Transit Authority aspires to be the mobility manager for a great
community of the 21" Century, with convenient, affordable and user-friendly
mobility for every resident and visitor.

These statements are the focus of all operations and support functions.

The Authority provides public transportation services within Franklin County, as well as portions
of Delaware, Fairfield and Licking Counties that are included within the municipal corporation
limits of Columbus, Westerville and Reynoldsburg. This service includes 67 fixed bus routes
comprised of 26 local routes (including 6 link routes), 11 cross-town routes, and 30 express
routes. The span of service provided on these fixed routes is from 4:35 am. to 3:44 am. on
weekdays, 5:03 am. to 3:44 am. on Saturdays, and 6:34 am. to 2:09 am. on Sundays and
holidays. The Authority estimates that it will provide approximately 767,000 vehicle hours of
fixed route bus service in 2003 resulting in approximately 10,719,000 vehicle miles of operation.

(continued)
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In addition, the Authority provides demand-responsive transportation to the elderly and disabled
through its Senior Citizens on the Town (SCOT) program and Project Mainstream, respectively.
The Authority projects that in 2003, it will provide approximately 1,585 vehicle hours and
22,000 vehicle miles of SCOT service, and 127,000 vehicle hours and 2,351,000 vehicle miles of
Project Mainstream (door-to-door, on-demand) service with wheelchair lift-equipped minibuses.

Management — Board of Trustees

The Authority is managed by a Board of Trustees (the “Board”) vested by Ohio law with the
powers necessary to manage the Authority. The legislation and agreements establishing the
Authority provide for a thirteen-member Board serving overlapping three-year terms. Board
membership is apportioned as follows: City of Columbus, seven members; Franklin County, two
members; and one member each from the following groups of municipal corporations: Group A,
Upper Arlington and Grandview Heights; Group B, Worthington, Gahanna and Westerville;
Group C, Whitehall and Bexley; and Group D, Grove City, Reynoldsburg and Hilliard. When
one Board member represents several cities, the appointments are made on a rotational basis.
Members are appointed by the mayor of the appropriate municipal corporation with the consent
of its city council. The Board of County Commissioners appoints the Franklin County
representatives.

Administration

The President/CEO, who is appointed by the Board, directs the administration of the Authority,
subject to the policies and supervision of the Board of Trustees. The President/CEO selects the
senior administrative personnel. A Table of Organization depicting the key functional
responsibilities is shown on Page 21 of this Introductory Section.

ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK

Franklin County (the Authority’s primary service area) is located in the central part of Ohio, and
the City of Columbus (the capital of the state) is located within its boundaries. The Columbus
Metropolitan Statistical Area (MSA) consists of six counties: Delaware, Fairfield, Franklin,
Licking, Madison, and Pickaway. Based on data from the U.S. Census Bureau, this combined
area’s population is 1,583,907, with Franklin County’s population of 1,086,814 making it the
MSA’s largest county in terms of population.

Franklin County is served by diverse transportation modes. Interstate Highway 1-270 forms an
Outerbelt surrounding Columbus, while Interstate Highways I-70 and I-71 intersect in the center
of the county. Four U. S. highways and thirteen state highways are also located in the county.
The major airport authority is the Columbus Regional Airport Authority comprising two large
airports, an international airport and separate air-freight/cargo facility. Two small municipal
airports also serve general and light aviation. Although growth has slowed during the current
recession, Franklin County had experienced rapid growth during the decade of the nineties.

(continued)
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Further commercial and office development is continuing in northeastern Franklin County
(Easton), northern Columbus (Polaris), southeastern Franklin County (Rickenbacker), and in the
downtown areas of Columbus known as the Arena District and the Brewery District.

Population

Population in the Authority’s primary service area since 1960 has been as follows:

Franklin
Year Columbus County
1960 471,316 682,923
1970 540,025 833,249
1980 565,032 869,126
1990 632,910 961,437
2000 711,470 1,068,978

Source: U.S. Census Bureau

Employment

The following table shows average employment in Franklin County, and comparative
unemployment statistics for Franklin County, the State of Ohio and the United States for the last
five years:

Average Average Unemployment Rate
Employment Franklin

Year in Franklin County County Ohio U.S.
1998 567,100 2.5% 4.3% 4.5%
1999 578,400 2.5 43 4.2
2000 589,600 24 4.1 4.0
2001 604,800 2.8 43 4.8
2002 596,900 44 5.7 5.8

Source: Ohio Department of Job and Family Services
Housing and Building Permits
According to U. S. Bureau of Census figures, the median value in 2000 of owner-occupied
homes in Franklin County was $116,200, compared with $103,700 for urban housing in Ohio

and $119,600 in the United States. Between 1990 and 2000, the number of housing units in
Franklin County increased 16.2%, from 405,418 to 471,016.

(continued)
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Economic Outlook

While the local economy mirrors the national economy, Franklin County has remained stable as
a regional economic center. Columbus continues to be the most populous city in Ohio and the
only major municipality in the state still experiencing population growth. This is attributable to
Columbus’ aggressive annexation policies and a pro-growth economic emphasis in city
government. Franklin County’s sizable institutional component, stemming from the presence of
Ohio’s capital and The Ohio State University, lends considerable stability to the local economy.
The overall countywide assessed property valuation has continued to increase as a result of
ongoing residential, office and retail development. The economic climate of Franklin County
directly affects COTA due to the reliance on sales tax receipts as a major source of revenue.
Growth is expected to continue into the future, with the MSA population projected to exceed 1.7
million by the year 2010.

MAJOR INITIATIVES
Federal Approval of Light Rail Line

The Project Management Plan (PMP) for the North Corridor was completed and submitted to
Federal Transportation Administration (FTA). The PMP was received favorably by the FTA, as
was the update of the financial analysis requirement for the New Start submission. For the
second year in a row, COTA received a “recommended” rating from the (FTA) to move into the
preliminary engineering stage for rail development in the North Corridor. The rating means that
the FTA considers the plan to be complete, competitive with other projects across the nation and
worthy of being eligible for federal funding for the next phase of analysis. The plan includes a
70 percent increase in bus service, 40 percent increase in curb-to-curb service for people with
disabilities, plus electrified light rail that begins with service to the North Corridor. Together
these improvements will result in a 90 percent overall increase in the region’s transit service.

Major Capital Projects Completed / Initiated

A number of major capital projects were initiated and completed in 2002. The Easton Transit
Center was completed and opened for operation in April. The Center is the second of 17 planned
community transit centers. Another major capital project completed was the successful
installation of a new bus wash system at the McKinley Avenue facility. During 2002,
discussions and plans for the development of a third Transit Center on East Main Street were
initiated with ground breaking expected in late 2003. Final design work initiated included the
Arena Terminal, Front Street Bridge and Easton Daycare projects.

New Technology for Better Bus Service

In 2002, COTA made its Computer Aided Dispatch (CAD) and Advanced Vehicle Locations
(AVL) systems operational. With the new systems, COTA is able to track electronically the

(continued)
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location of every bus and service vehicle, improving on-time service and safety for its customers.
In partnership with The Ohio State University, COTA designed the Real Time Bus Arrival
System to provide passengers at select locations with the actual arrival time of their bus. Other
system initiatives initiated in 2002 and targeted for implementation in 2003 include Automatic
Annunciators, Automatic Passenger Counters, and Wireless LAN.

Enhanced Customer Service

COTA’s mission includes a commitment to provide high quality service to its customers. Despite
an eroding base of downtown employers, COTA provided nearly 17 million rides in 2002,
mostly in the greater Columbus area. To meet the needs of its bike-riding customers, COTA
completed a “pilot demonstration” of the Bike Rack project in the latter part of the year.
Customer Service Center support was enhanced with the addition 24/7 service with a new voice
activated system in Spanish as well as English. During 2002, COTA achieved the lowest level of
customer complaints per 100,000 boardings in its history.

Job Access and Mobility Management

The Job Access and Mobility Management Program continued to partner with agencies and
employers to help find transportation solutions to assist low-income individuals with getting to
work. COTA received the National Welfare to Work Award from the American Public Transit
Association’s (APTA) Welfare-to-Work Task Committee for the 2™ consecutive year. The
Award recognizes COTA’s efforts in two areas: helping employers find new employees and
providing those new employees with a dependable way to get to those jobs. The National Award
recognizes COTA’s Job Access and Reverse Commute Programs.

Arena Terminal

Planned for completion in the fourth quarter of 2005, the 115,000 square foot Arena Terminal
will be located at the north end of downtown Columbus. The facility will initially serve as a
centralized transit center serving downtown bus operations, with retail and passenger amenities
below COTA’s administrative offices. Strategically located over two Class I freight railroad
lines, the building has also been designed to serve as an integrated passenger rail facility which
will enable the terminal to serve future Amtrak intercity, commuter, and intracity rail operations.
Preliminary engineering is completed and COTA plans to move into final design and
construction during calendar year 2003.

Ratification of Labor Contract
After extensive negotiations, COTA management and Transport Workers Union (TWU) Local

208 were successful in achieving a three-year labor agreement for Bus Operators, Mechanics and
Cashiers. The contract included wage increases and modifications to the employee health plan.

(continued)
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The accomplishments made by COTA in 2002 are just the beginning. COTA is breaking new
ground every day, continuing to grow and working to make our vision a reality.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Internal Control Structure

The management of the Authority is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal
control structure designed to ensure that the Authority’s assets are protected from loss, theft or
misuse. Management’s responsibility is also to ensure that accurate accounting data is compiled
to allow for the preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles.

In developing and evaluating the Authority’s accounting system, emphasis is placed on the
adequacy of internal controls. Internal accounting controls are designed to provide reasonable,
but not absolute, assurance regarding the reliability of financial records used to prepare financial
statements, and the protection of assets against loss from unauthorized use or disposition. The
concept of “reasonable assurance” recognizes that the cost of the control should not exceed the
benefits likely to be derived, and that the evaluation of costs and benefits requires estimates and
judgments by management.

All internal control evaluations occur within the above framework. Management believes that
the Authority’s internal accounting controls adequately safeguard assets and provide reasonable
assurance that financial transactions are propetly recorded. Management also believes that the
data in this CAFR, as presented, is accurate in all material respects, that it presents fairly the
financial position, results of operations and cash flows of the Authority, and that all disclosures
necessary to enable the reader to gain the maximum understanding of the Authority’s financial
affairs have been included.

Basis of Accounting

The Authority’s financial records are maintained on the accrual basis of accounting. The
activities are accounted for in a single enterprise (proprietary-type) fund.

Effective January 1, 2001, the Authority implemented GASB Statement No. 33, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Nonexchange Transactions, and GASB Statement No. 36, Recipient
Reporting for Certain Nonexchange Revenues (an amendment of GASB No. 33). In general,
GASB Nos. 33 and 36 establish accounting and financial reporting standards for nonexchange
transactions involving financial or capital resources. In a nonexchange transaction, an entity
gives (or receives) value without directly receiving or giving equal value in return.

The Authority’s principal nonexchange transactions involve the receipt of federal, state and local
grants for operating assistance as well as the acquisition of property, facilities and equipment.

(continued)
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Substantially all of the Authority’s grants are reimbursement-type grants, which are recorded as
revenue in the period the related expenditures are incurred. Any grants received in advance of
the period in which the related expenditures are incurred, are recorded as restricted assets and as
- deferred grant revenue until the expenditures are incurred.

Budgetary Controls

The annual accrual basis operating and capital budgets are proposed by the Authority’s
management and adopted by the Board of Trustees in a public meeting usually held in the month
preceding a new fiscal year. The annual budget is prepared using overall guidelines established
after consideration of the Authority’s long-range financial plan. This plan, updated annually,
projects revenue sources over the next ten years and establishes service levels and growth
commensurate with such revenue limits.

Management control for the budget is maintained by not permitting total expenditures to exceed
total appropriations without approval of the Board of Trustees. It is the responsibility of each
department to administer its operations in such a manner as to ensure that the use of funds is
consistent with the goals and programs authorized by the Board of Trustees.

Financial Results — Revenues

The Authority’s revenues are classified by source and described as shown below:

REVENUES BY SOURCE
(Thousands of Dollars)
Increase / (Decrease)
2002 2001 Amount Percent
Sales Tax Revenues $41,245 $41,748 $(503) (1.2)%
Passenger Fares 13,082 13,216 (134) (1.0)
Federal Assistance 12,400 11,389 1,011 8.9
Federal Capital Grants 3,125 23,475 (20,350) (86.7)
Investment Income 900 1,310 (410) (31.3)
State Assistance 860 2,136 (1,276) (59.7)
State Capital Grants 351 2,850 (2,499) (87.7)
Other Revenues:
Non-Transportation Revenue 1,184 400 784 196.0
Auxiliary Transportation Revenue 730 887 (157) (17.7)
TOTAL $73,877 $97.411 $(23,534) (31.9Y%

Sales Tax Revenues are received from a permanent %% sales tax levy approved by voters in
November 1999 and applicable to COTA’s service area. The decrease in 2002 revenues is due to

(continued)
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the national economic recession that commenced during 2001. An increase in sales tax revenue
was budgeted in 2003.

Passenger Fares are comprised of farebox revenues, special transit fares and charter revenues.
The decrease from 2001 amounts reflects a decline in ridership in 2002.

Federal Assistance is received from the Federal Transit Authority (FTA) for general operating
expenses and capital programs. With the passage of the Transportation Equity Act of the 21*
Century (TEA-21), regional transit authorities were given the latitude to use their Section 5307
Federal Formula Assistance on the capitalization of maintenance. As a result, virtually all of the
Section 5307 funds are targeted to vehicle maintenance, permitting the full use of this allocation
each year, and freeing local funds for future capital projects.

Federal Capital Grants are received from the FTA for capital projects and capital acquisitions.
Federal Capital Grants reimburse the Authority in part for the purchase of new buses and
equipment. The decrease in grant revenue is attributable mainly to the 2001 purchase of new
buses, and the successful implementation of the CAREERS radio system.

Investment Income is earned on invested funds. During 2002, lower balances in the Star Ohio
investment account and interest rate reductions by the Federal Reserve during the year
contributed to decreasing investment income.

State Assistance is received from the Ohio Department of Transportation (ODOT) for general
operating expenses, for elderly and disabled rider reduced-fare subsidies, and for reimbursement
of State fuel taxes. COTA is required to pay State taxes on diesel fuel, but is refunded $0.21 of
the $0.22 per gallon paid. In 2002, the ODOT eliminated general operating assistance to COTA.

State Capital Grants are received from the ODOT for capital projects and capital acquisitions.
State Capital Grants reimburse the Authority in part for the purchase of new buses and
equipment. The decrease in grant revenue is attributable mainly to the 2001 purchase of new
buses, and the successful implementation of the CAREERS radio system.

Other Revenues consist of auxiliary transportation revenues and non-transportation revenues.
Auxiliary transportation revenue represents fees collected for advertising placed in and on buses,
and decreased due to economic conditions. Non-transportation revenues include all other
various miscellaneous income items.

On page 14 are graphs depicting sources of revenue as a percent of total revenues for the fiscal
years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001.

(continued)
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Financial Results — Expenses (Excluding Depreciation)

The following table shows the Authority’s expenses, excluding depreciation. The Authority’s
major investment is in its employees as shown by the percentage expended for labor and fringe
benefits.

EXPENSES BY OBJECT CLASS
(Excluding Depreciation)

(Thousands of Dollars) ‘ :
Increase / (Decrease)
2002 2001 Amount Percent
Labor $32,590 $34,037 $(1,447) 4.3)%
Fringe Benefits 18,769 18,504 265 1.4
Materials and Supplies 5,483 6,285 (802) (12.8)
Purchased Transportation 3,877 4,077 (200) 4.9)
Services 3,765 4,714 (949) (20.1)
Other Expenses
Utilities 1,173 1,369 (196) (14.3)
Taxes 621 696 (75) (10.8)
Leases and Rentals 558 399 159 39.8
Claims and Insurance 337 440 (103) (23.4)
Miscellaneous _677 1,255 (578) (46.1)
TOTAL $67.850 $71.776 $(3,926) (5.5Y%

Labor comprises nearly half of the total Authority expenses and includes hourly wages paid to
union-represented employees (bus operators, mechanics and facility maintenance personnel), and
salaries and wages paid to administrative staff (clerical, supervisory and management personnel).
A reduction in service hours resulted in the layoff of sixty-four full-time and three part-time
employees, thereby reducing labor expense.

Fringe Benefits consist primarily of vacation, sick and holiday pay, required Authority
contributions to the Ohio Public Employees Retirement System (OPERS), and employee medical
benefits. Required employer contributions to OPERS were made at the rate of 13.55% of total
gross taxable wages in 2002. In 2002, a 2.5% “pickup” was contributed for represented
employees and 3% for administrative employees. The increase in fringe benefits in 2002 is due
to rising medical insurance costs.

(continued)
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Materials and Supplies also include the Authority’s diesel fuel expense. The primary factor for
the decrease is a reduction in fuel consumption of over 160,000 gallons due.to reduced service
hours.

Purchased Transportation expense is comprised of amounts paid to a private local contractor
to provide the Authority’s Project Mainstream service (door-to-door, service-on-demand in
wheelchair lift-equipped minibuses for disabled riders). The 2002 decrease was driven by a
reduction in the number of service hours provided, and a reduced billing rate under a contract
with a new vendor commencing August 1, 2002.

Services are provided by outside contractors to the Authority for a wide variety of professional,
technical, consulting and maintenance needs. The decrease for 2002 is due to the completion of
various technical projects.

Other Expenses consist primarily of utilities, taxes, interest, leases and rentals, claims and
insurance and other miscellaneous expenses. Taxes are paid to the State on diesel fuel
consumption at the rate of $0.22 per gallon, and real estate taxes are paid on non-exempt
Authority property. Total diesel fuel taxes decreased in 2002 due to a reduction in fuel usage.
Leases and rentals are paid on the downtown COTA Connection customer service center, the
COTA Business Development Division office on Lake Shore Drive, the Project Mainstream
paratransit offices on Phillipi Road, certain park-and-ride facilities, and miscellaneous
equipment, and increased in 2002 because of higher lease costs for office space, and the leasing
of additional office space. Claims and insurance expense decreased due to a reduction in claims
with our self-insurance program. On page 15 is a graph of expenses, excluding depreciation, by
object class as a percent of the total for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001.

The Authority’s expenses, excluding depreciation, can also be classified by functional category
and described as shown in the following table:

EXPENSES BY FUNCTION
(Excluding Depreciation)
(Thousands of Dollars)
Increase / (Decrease)
002 2001 Amount Percent
Transportation $37,952 $38,889 $(937) 2.4)%
Vehicle Maintenance 11,630 11,945 (315) (2.6)
Facilities Maintenance 4,845 4,872 27 (0.6)
General and Administrative 13.423 16,070 (2.647) (16.5)
TOTAL $67,850 $71,776 $(3,926) (5.5Y%

(continued)




CENTRAL OHIO TRANSIT AUTHORITY
Revenues by Source

2002 Total Revenues
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CENTRAL OHIO TRANSIT AUTHORITY

Expense by Object Class
(Excluding Depreciation)
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Transportation expenses are those direct costs incurred in operating the Authority’s bus
vehicles and paratransit minibuses (Project Mainstream) and include wages, salaries and fringe
benefits for bus operations, supervisors, bus scheduling and fare collection personnel; diesel fuel
and related state fuel taxes; bus system security services; and transportation services purchased
from private contractors.

Vehicle Maintenance expenses include wages, salaries and fringe benefits for maintenance
personnel and supervisors, and related materials and supplies consumed in the maintenance of all
buses and service vehicles.

Facilities Maintenance expenses include wages, salaries and fringe benefits for maintenance
and janitorial personnel and supervisors, and materials and supplies required for the upkeep of
the Authority’s two main facilities, two terminals, the two transit centers, 25 park-and-ride lots
and 377 bus stop passenger shelter locations.

General and Administrative expenses consist of administrative personnel salaries and fringe
benefits, utilities, public liability and property damage claims, contracted professional services,
leases and rentals, interest expense, planning study expense, and miscellaneous expenses
required to support all operational activities.

In general, fluctuations are consistent with those noted at the object class level as previously
discussed.

Financial Results — Retained Earnings

The Authority’s loss before capital grants (including depreciation) for the year ended December
31, 2002, was $11,094,123. After including capital grants, the net decrease in retained eamnings
was $7.6 million (from $78.7 million to $71.1 million).

Retirement Plans

Full-time, permanent employees (current or retired) of the Authority are covered under the Ohio
Public Employees Retirement System (OPERS), a statewide public retirement (including
disability retirement) system.

Employees covered by OPERS contribute at a statutory rate of 8.5% of earnable salary or
compensation, and the Authority contributes 13.55% of the same base. These contribution rates
are actuarially determined and statutorily mandated. In 2002, the Authority by contractual
agreement paid 2.5% of the represented employees’ required contribution and 3% of the
administrative employees’ contribution.

The Authority has a “pickup” (assume and pay) program with respect to all of the statutorily
required contributions of the employees covered by OPERS. These “pickups” defer the
employees’ federal and state income taxes on those contributions at no extra cost to the

(continued)
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Authority. OPERS is not subject to the funding and vesting requirements of the federal
Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974. .

OPERS was created by, and operates pursuant to, the Ohio Revised Code. The Ohio General
Assembly could decide to amend the format of OPERS and could revise rates or methods of
contributions to be made by the Authority into the pension fund and revise benefits or benefit
levels.

Federal law requires Authority employees hired after March 31, 1986 to participate in the federal
Medicare program, which requires matching employer and employee contributions, each being
1.45% of taxable wages. Otherwise, Authority employees are not currently covered under the
federal Social Security Act.

Debt Administration

Only capital projects are eligible for debt financing under the Ohio Revised Code. Management
believes that existing cash and investment balances and projected cash flows of the Authority are
more than adequate to cover future operating costs. As of December 31, 2002, the maximum
annual debt service charges permitted by law for new, unvoted debt issuance was $25.4 million.
However, the Authority currently intends to fund capital improvements through federal grants,
state grants, and local sales tax revenues.

Cash Management and Investments

The Authority utilizes a cash management and investment policy intended to maximize financial
return while minimizing risk of loss. Cash balances are invested at the best interest rates
available in the money markets within the constraints imposed by the investment policy of the
Authority and the Ohio Revised Code. In accordance with these provisions, only banks located
in Ohio and domestic building and loan associations are eligible to hold public deposits. These
provisions also permit the Authority to invest its monies in certificates of deposit, savings
accounts, money market accounts, the State Treasurer’s Investment Pool (STAR OHIO),
obligations of the United States government or certain agencies thereof. The Authority may also
enter into repurchase agreements with any eligible depository for a period not exceeding thirty
days. Otherwise, investments in “derivatives” are forbidden.

As defined by the criteria developed by the Government Accounting Standards Board, most of
the Authority’s deposits are either uncollateralized, or are collateralized by securities held by the
pledging financial institutions’ trust department or agent (but not in the Authority’s name). The
Authority’s deposits are, however, secured in compliance with the Ohio Revised Code. Because
the Authority’s deposits are held by large, financially sound banks, management believes that the
security supporting the Authority’s deposits is adequate.

Effective January 1, 1998, the Authority adopted GASB Statement No. 31, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Certain Investments and External investment Pools. Pursuant to

(continued)
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Statement No. 31, at December 31, 2002, investments are carried at fair value, which is based on
quoted market prices. Any unrealized gains or losses are recognized as adjustments to
investment income. The Authority’s policy is to hold investment securities to their scheduled
maturity date.

Risk Management

The Authority is self-insured for public liability and property damage claims. Claims are
normally paid with the operating revenues of the Authority. The Authority, by resolution of the
Board of Trustees, restricted assets in fiscal year 1987 to accumulate funds to satisfy catastrophic
or extraordinary losses. The restricted assets for self-insurance as of December 31, 2002, were
approximately $12.6 million.

The Authority is under contract with an insurance carrier who provides fully-insured group
coverage for employee general health and hospitalization benefits. Blanket insurance coverage
is maintained for property and equipment. In addition, the Authority has insurance to protect
against internal losses.

Prior to June 30, 1998, COTA was insured through the State of Ohio Bureau of Workers’
Compensation (BWC) for injuries to its employees. On July 1, 1998, the Authority entered into
an agreement with the BWC to become self-insured for claims pertaining to work-related injuries
to Authority employees occurring on or after that date. The BWC agreed to continue to
administer and pay all compensation claims arising on or before June 30, 1998. The estimated
liability for all such claims occurring since July 1, 1998, was $355,902 at December 31, 2002,
and is included as a liability in the accompanying balance sheet.

OTHER INFORMATION
Independent Audit

The Authority’s independent certified public accounting firm of Deloitte & Touche LLP has
rendered an unqualified audit report on the Authority’s financial statements for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2002. This report is included in the financial section of this CAFR.

The Authority also participates in the federal single audit program, which consists of a single
audit of all federally funded programs administered by the Authority. As a requirement for
continued funding eligibility, participation in the single audit program is mandatory for most
local governments, including the Authority. The single audit performed by Deloitte & Touche
LLP met the requirements set forth by the State of Ohio and the federal Single Audit Act of 1984
(including the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996) and related Office of Management and
Budget Circular A-133 (Revised).

(continued)
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It is the intention of the Authority’s management to submit this and future CAFRs for review
under the GFOA'’s “Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting” program.
Management believes the current report conforms to the program requirements, and expects that
participation will result in continued improvement in the Authority’s financial reporting in future
years.
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Deloitte & Touche LLP
155 East Broad Street
Columbus, Ohio 43215-3611

Tel: (614) 221-1000
Fax: (614) 229-4647
www.deloitte.com

Deloitte
& Touche

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Board of Trustees
Central Ohio Transit Authority
Columbus, Ohio:

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of Central Ohio Transit Authority (“COTA”) as of
December 31, 2002 and 2001, and the related statements of revenues, expenses and changes in equity
and of cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of COTA’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of COTA as of December 31, 2002 and 2001, and the results of its operations and its
cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

Our audits were performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements of COTA
taken as a whole. The supplemental schedule listed in the table of contents is presented for purposes of
additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements of COTA. The supplemental
schedule is also the responsibility of COTA management. The supplemental schedule has been subjected
to the auditing procedures applied in the audits of the financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly
presented in all material respects in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

The statistical data presented on pages 43 - 58 is presented for the purpose of additional analysis and is
not a required part of the financial statements of COTA. The statistical data is the responsibility of
COTA management. Such additional information has not been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in our audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

AM} Truehe ., p
June 13, 2003 ’

Deloitte
Touche 25
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CENTRAL OHIO TRANSIT AUTHORITY
Balance Sheets

December 31, 2002 and 2001

ASSETS 2002 2001
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents ..........ccooeveiiiiiiiinini . 14,288,101 3 11,329,754
Receivables:
T [ 7Y, SO PP 10,471,892 11,312,175
Federal operating assiStance..........cooevveererunencuaennennen 514,527 575,314
State operating assiStance.........o.oviuieirerinieariiiinn, - 1,002,550
161115, ST PP 833,919 1,396,420
Inventory of materials and supplies.........ocoveiiiniiiniiienn, 2,511,644 2,172,138
101111 U PPN 303,581 783,975
B 11 ST 28,923,664 28,572,326
RESTRICTED ASSETS:
Board restricted:
Cash and cash equivalents...........coovrveeieinnnninieonne. 4,768,753 17,640,715
TNVESTIMIENLS . ..t vetineeeevs e eraaeaennreessasrtsseseransanssanas 11,233,315 -
Accrued interest receivable.....ooovriiniiiiiiii 127,722 -
TOLAL v evreeeeseee e stieeeeessressesnseerneeseassanessensnsesreeneessesnans . 16,129,790 17,640,715
Restricted for capital grants:
Cash and cash equivalents.............ooovveiiiiinninnnin. 4,098,070 633,713
Federal capital grants receivable.........cocoveiiniiiniiinnnn. 133,182 1,024,266
State capital grants receivable.......coeiivveiivniinisinnininen 16,105 1,130,464
TOtAL.vveeeeeeeeeieecrr e ere e et e nss e e aeassn s e eesranssaras s an s 4,247 357 2,788,443
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT:
COSE eeueeereeeeeroueraseeessseeasessassessasessesssessnesnsasseeeaseemsns st ensasresssbs 166,228,941 168,928,071
Less accumulated depreciation.......c.ocvvvvevemniencninniineninnsnieenn (84,155,678) (79,001,885)
TOAL et r et e e e ere e an e se e s e et sresenna e sa s 82,073,263 89,926,186
TOTAL ASSETS. .ottt ceeeererssrre e sresiee e snessassnneans 131,374,074 $ 138,927,670
See notes to financial statements.
(continued)
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CENTRAL OHIO TRANSIT AUTHORITY
Balance Sheets (continued)
December 31,2002 and 2001

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 2002 2001
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accrued payroll and fringe benefits.........ocoveerieneiiiiiinnniin $ 6,694,270 $ 6,217,385
Accounts payable............o. i 2,561,407 2,900,408
Accrued payroll taXes........cocovevinierireeneninn e 754,797 619,815
Estimated workers compensation claims............c.ooeeininin 355,902 393,401
Other current HHabilitieS. ... .eeviirereeeereeriesrreseseereeenresnneeennnnens 248,049 309,572
TOAL v eeeeeeeeeeeeereeeesseeeesseeessaeerrseesssrasssasassasestessassssonnrsans 10,614,425 10,440,581

LIABILITIES PAYABLE FROM RESTRICTED ASSETS:

Estimated claims payable ........couiiiiininiiinicrnen 335,555 440,086
Accounts Payable - Grants.........cccvvevenieneneneninnnnnnnnecenene 65,213 70,161
TOtAL cvveereeeeeeeeeerieeisrereeseessrnesrrssesareesnsessssneenessarassssrnsoans 400,768 510,247
Total LHabilItIES .. eceirvereereierrecrreeresererrerseseeeserneseessssassnnnns 11,015,193 10,950,828
EQUITY:
Contributed capital:
Federal capital grants.........ccocoveeereninmrennsenisnienecenensnnes 45,272,359 45,272,359
State capital Grants........ccovevevenniiininiiieise e 3,012,158 3,012,158
Donated capital.........c.euveviniiiininiiiiiiii e 942,000 942,000
TOtAL cvveeeeeeeeeeeeee e eesueessseesssrerraeesassesssneassaesssasenanmessasesses 49,226,517 49,226,517
Retained €arnings .......co.eeerveeviiinmniereneniesssssesesisseesesrsscsnsnenes 71,132,364 78,750,325
Total EQUILY...cccoveririinieiie e 120,358,881 127,976,842
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY ...ctiniiiniciiinnnnn, $ 131,374,074 $ 138,927,670

See notes to financial statements.
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CENTRAL OHIO TRANSIT AUTHORITY

Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Equity
Years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001

OPERATING REVENUES:

Passenger fares for transit SEIVICe.....coovvrievinrerereninneesinenincncnnne
Special transit fares.......ccoovvevieinimins e
Charter SEIVICE FEVENUE.....c.ecrererrverererrsreesiniireseieesessessnssenseesnsnanas
Auxiliary transportation reVENUE.......ceveererrerieesiesessesissresessenes

Fringe benefils......cccovrenriiniiiniiniiienieie e
Materials and SUPPLES.....ccocvvverrirriinimiiininininee e
Purchased transportation.........cc.erevrissrirensnsnresmssinise s esseene.
L7 (01 T U SOPIN
UHIHES. v eveererrecreesserceesernesser s st esaissns st sare e sbe s stasan s sin s scaes

Leases and TENLALS ..ecoveeecerierreeereirreeineeeineersvnsseersessesssnsessesssesssmaneenns
Claims and insurance, net of settlements........covvvveemenininiiecenenn.
AQVEITISING v veverieneecereinert it
IMISCEIIANEOUS. ..evveeveeetieeereeeresreescseeseneesssesssenesaseesnnesssnsnsesssssnasanns

DEPRECIATION:

Total operating EXpeNSES.....vireiirnrrrerrsireniesseeneee s

EXCESS OF OPERATING EXPENSES INCLUDING

DEPRECIATION OVER OPERATING REVENUES

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
SalES tAX TEVEIIUES..eveeeerervessreerenrsesssrssessesransssssssssessamsssescrensesnsssasess

Federal operating grants and reimbursements

State operating grants, reimbursements and

special fare assistance .........oceeveeeeeviniininnenee
INLErESt INCOME. ...uviiuerirreereesirrereeenereeesstresteinte b eneeebesse b nnnsseesens
Nontransportation and other FEVENUE..........cvverreeiniessniciennienesnennenne

Loss before capital grants.........cooovviiiviimeiaiiiiiiinnnn

Capital grants

Federal capital grants..........oceveeeieinininiimennernineniienann,
State capital grants..........ocovviieiiniiimiiiiii

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN EQUITY

(carried forward to next page)

See notes to financial statements.

2002 2001
12,772,854 $ 12,761,958
290,908 433,050
18,028 21,348
729,616 887,105
13,811,406 14,103,461
32,589,595 34,036,782
18,768,795 18,503,633
5,483,476 6,285,013
3,876,524 4,077,362
3,765,390 4,714,321
1,172,969 1,369,117
620,586 696,416
558,418 398,535
337,153 439,789
229,112 638,110
448,312 616,454
67,850,330 71,775,532
13,644,144 10,851,491
81,494,474 82,627,023
(67,683,068) (68,523,562)
41,244,787 41,748,046
12,400,518 11,388,826
859,901 2,135,821
899,678 1,309,535
1,184,061 399,732
56,588,945 56,981,960
(11,094,123) (11,541,602)
3,125,130 23,475,497
351,032 2,850,522
(7,617,961) $ 14,784,417
(continued)
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CENTRAL OHIO TRANSIT AUTHORITY
Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Equity (continued)
Years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001

2002 2001
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN EQUITY
(brought forward from previous page)..........c..eenvniinnisicnicecnn. $ (7,617,961) $ 14,784,417
EQUITY, BEGINNING OF YEAR.....ccocvtritrrinirensssesssssns s e 127,976,842 113,192,425
EQUITY, END OF YEAR......ccoirmiiniiemnetrmnstssntsssnesncsensesnsisssssss s s 0 e . $ 120,358,881 $ 127?976,842

See notes to financial statements.
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CENTRAL OHIO TRANSIT AUTHORITY
Statements of Cash Flows
Years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001

2002

)
<
=
—

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Excess of operating expenses including depreciation over
OPEIALINE TEVETIUES. c--v-vrevereremscrscrsnssisnsnsssinsssssssssesssssssssssssssssssssenssensomsss s sssssios $ (67,683,068) $  (68,523,562)
Adjustments to reconcile to net cash used in operating activities:
Depreciation EXPENSE......oiriuruererererssirerteserstsiasttestseenssasessasirs st 13,644,144 10,851,491
Change in assets and liabilities:
Sales tAX TECEIVADIE. ....ovveeviecrreireeereererteseesetesreess e st sresarsae e nesarebe s e s e e s 840,283 (269,609)
Accrued payroll and related taXes........ooeeeeieivnriereinneeenn s 611,867 745,730
Other NONOPErating rEVENUES, NEL......cvmuerrrrirereirseerisesisssesnnssrss e sssnsass s essens 1,184,069 393,311
Estimated claims payable...........coviireieniirenmninninenen e (142,030) 186,314
Other TECEIVADIES. ...cveeveveeeereertieriererenerieiser it be s s e s s oeoee 562,501 98,166
| CINE 1116) 2N (339,506) 46,261
Accounts payable........cococvunniiiierenns (339,001) (1,335,703)
Other current liabilities (61,523) (15,025)
OtNET @SSELS..veuevverriniererersieteesiresseseasersestesesneserebresssassensenssessssresaensssnssesaessonneneie 480,394 .(275,862)
Total adjustments 16,441,198 10,425,074
Net cash used in operating aCtiVities........covrvirerierrivieoscnnnsnieneciins (51,241,870) (58,098,488)
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Sales 1AXES TECEIVE. ... viireireierreerirreereerreseesreesrie e tsrsesasesra e s eaberss et b e e sas s bnesosesontenanis 41,244,787 41,748,046
Federal operating assistance reCeived.......ommmmmmiriniiceicie e 12,461,305 11,313,854
State operating and other assistance received........ovumrvierenernnieniinininnn, 1,862,451 4,266,097
Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities........c.coevnererniniiinens 55,568,543 57,327,997
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Federal capital grants reCeived..... ..ot 4,016,214 27,114,411
State capital Grants IECEIVEL. ....ureurmeriviimirririnisrss s s aes 1,465,383 2,476,145
Acquisition and construction of fiXxed aSSetS........correeerinenniii e (5,796,169) (32,366,993)
Net cash used in capital and related financing activities.......coovvrmreivienccens (314,572) (2,776,437)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Interest received from INVESHMENTS........covviiiriver e rireseieneesiseeesassresiessssessrnessnssssansnne 771,956 1,309,535
Purchases Of INVESIMENES. .. ... uuueure et ettt st e s e e re e st nrns e (11,233,315)
Net cash used in/provided by investing activities..........cooverirnenenns e (10,461,359) 1,309,535
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS.......cooiiriniiniienecnes (6,449,258) (2,237,393)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR......cccooeiiiciiiinen 29,604,182 31,841,575
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR ..o $ 23,154,924 $ 29,604,182

See notes to financial statements.
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CENTRAL OHIO TRANSIT AUTHORITY
Notes to Financial Statements
Years Ended December 31, 2002 and 2001

(1) Organization and Reporting Entity
(a) Organization

The Central Ohio Transit Authority (COTA or the Authority) is an independent,
special-purpose political subdivision of the State of Ohio. The Authority was created
on February 17, 1971, pursuant to Sections 306.30 through 306.53 of the Ohio
Revised Code for the purpose of providing public transportation in Central Ohio,
primarily Franklin County and surrounding areas. The Authority commenced
operations on January 1, 1974. As a political subdivision, the Authority is distinct
from, and is not an agency of, the State of Ohio or any other local governmental unit.

Under Ohio law, the Authority is authorized to levy a sales and use tax for transit
purposes, including both capital improvement and o erating expenses, in 0.25%
increments up to a maximum rate of 1.5% if approved by a majority of the electors
residing within the territorial boundaries of the Authority. Such a sales and use tax is
in addition to the sales and use taxes levied by the State of Ohio and Franklin County.
On November 5, 1999, the voters of Franklin County approved a permanent 0.25%
sales and use tax.

The Authority also has the power, under Section 306.40 of the Ohio Revised Code, to
levy and collect both voted (after approval at an election) and unvoted ad valorem
taxes on all the taxable property within the territorial boundaries of the Authority, in
order to pay debt service on ifs bonds and notes issued in anticipation thereof. Ad
valorem taxes were not levied during fiscal years 2002 and 2001.

The Authority is governed by a 13-member Board of Trustees. Members are
appointed by the mayors of COTA’s chartering municipal corporations and by the
Franklin County Board of Commissioners and serve overlapping 3-year terms.

The Authority is not subject to federal or state income taxes.
(b) Reporting Entity

The accompanying financial statements comply with the provisions of the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 14, The Financial
Reporting Entity. This statement requires that financial statements of the reporting
entity include all of the organizations, activities, functions and component units for
which the reporting entity is financially accountable. Financial accountability is
defined as the appointment of a voting majority of the component unit’s board and
either (1) the reporting entity’s ability fo impose its will over the component unit, or
(2) the possibility that the component unit will provide a financial benefit to or
impose a financial burden on the reporting entity. COTA does not have financial
accountability over any entities.

The City of Columbus (the City) is a related organization to COTA as the Mayor of
the City, with the approval of City Council, appoints a votin% ma'orit%; of COTA’s
Board. However, the financial statements of COTA are not included within the City’s
“Reporting Entity” as the City cannot impose its will and there is no financial benefit
or fi%ancial burden relationship between the City and COTA.

(continued)
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CENTRAL OHIO TRANSIT AUTHORITY
Notes to Financial Statements
Years Ended December 31, 2002 and 2001

(2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(@)

(b)

(©

Basis of Accounting

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of
accounting, whereby revenues and expenses are recognized in the dperlod earned or
incurred. All transactions are accounted for in a single enterprise fund.

Pursuant to GASB Statement No. 20 Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Proprietary Funds and Other Governmental Entities that Use Proprietary Fund
Accounting the Authority follows GASB guidance as applicable to proprietary funds
and Financial Accounting Standards Board Statements and Interpretations,
Accounting Principles Board Opinions and Accounting Research Bulletins issued on
or before November 30, 1989, that do not conflict with or contradict GASB
pronouncements.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Authority considers all highly liquid
investments (including restricted assets) with a maturity of three months or less when
purchased to be cash equivalents.

Grants and Assistance

The federal government, through the Federal Transit Administration (FTA), and the
Ohio Department of Transportation (ODOT) provide financial assistance and make
grants directly to the Authority for operations and the acquisition of property and
equipment. Grants for operating assistance and preventative maintenance are recorded
as revenues during the entitlement period to which the grants apply.

(d) Investments

(¢)

®

Pursuant to GASB Statement No. 31, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Certain Investments and External Investment Pools, investments are carried at fair
value based on quoted market prices. Any unrealized gains or losses re recognized as
adjustments to investment income. The Authority’s policy is to hold investment
securities to their scheduled maturity date.

Inventory of Materials and Supplies

Inventory items are stated at average cost. Inventory generally consists of maintenance
parts and supplies for transportation equipment.

Restricted Assets

Restricted assets consist of monies and other resources that are restricted by the
Authority’s Board of Trustees or capital grants for specified purposes. These
restrictions are described below:

(continued)
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(2

Board Restricted Assets — These assets are restricted for the pe}yment of public
liability claims under the Authority’s self-insurance program and for future capital
expenditures.

Restricted for Capital Grant Expenditures — These assets are restricted under
the Authority’s capital grants for certain capital projects. The Authority also
includes in restricted capital grant assets amounts relating to its local share
requirements for active capital grants.

Property and Depreciation

Property and equipment are stated at historical cost and include expenditures that
substantially increase the useful lives of existing assets. Routine maintenance and
repairs are expensed as incurred.

Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful
lives of the respective assets, as follows:

Descrintion Years
Land and leasehold improvements 5-20
Buildings and improvements 2040
Revenue vehicles 4-12
Transit shelters 5-8
Other equipment 3-10

Assets acquired with capital grants are included in property and eguipment and
depreciation on those assets is included in the statements of revenues and expenses.

(h) Estimated Claims Payable

@

0)

The Authority has a self-insurance program for public liability, personal injury,
property damage and worker’s compensation (see note 8). Claims are accrued in the
year the expenses are incurred, based upon estimates of the claim liabilities made by
management and the legal counsel of the Authority. Also provided for are estimates of
claims incurred during the year but not yet reported. These estimates are based on past
experience and current outstanding claims.

Compensated Absences

The Authority accrues vacation and sick pay benefits as earned by its employees.
Passenger Fares

Passenger fares are recorded as revenue at the time services are performed.

(continued)
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(k)

@

(m)

Budgetary Accounting and Control

The Authority’s annual budget is prepared on the accrual basis of accounting as
permitted by law. The Authority maintains budgetary control by not permitting total
expenditures to exceed total appropriations without approval of the Board of Trustees.

Use of Estimates

The accounting and reporting policies of COTA conform to accounting principles
%enerally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP). The preparation of
inancial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Nonexchange Transactions

Effective January 1, 2001, the Authority implemented GASB Statement No. 33,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Nonexchange Transactions, and GASB
Statement No. 36, Recipient Reporting for Certain Nonexchange Revenues (an
amendment of GASB No. 33).” In general, GASB Nos. 33 and 36 establish
accounting and financial reporting standards for nonexchange transactions involving
financial or capital resources. In a nonexchange transaction, an entity gives (or
receives) value without directly receiving or giving equal value in return.

The Authority’s principal nonexchange transactions involve the receipt of federal,
state and local grants for operating assistance as well as the acquisition of property,
facilities and equipment.  Substantially all of the Au‘?hority’s grants are
reimbursement-type grants, which are recorded as revenue in the period the related
expenditures are incurred. Any grants received in advance of the period in which the
related expenditures are incurred, are recorded as restricted assets and as deferred
grant revenue until the expenditures are incurred.

(n) New Accounting Pronouncements

GASB recently issued Statements No. 34, Basic Financial Statements-and
Management’s Discussion and Analysis-for State and Local Governments, No. 37,
Basic Financial Statements—and Management’s Discussion and Analysis-for State
and Local Governments: Omnibus, and No. 38, Certain Financial Statement Note
Disclosures. The Authority has not elected early implementation of these statements
in 2002. The Authority is required to implement GASB Statement No. 34 by 2003.

The Authority has not completed the process of evaluating the impact of adopting
these statements, and therefore is unable to disclose the impact that adopting these
statements will have on its financial position and results of operations when such
statements are implemented.

(continued)
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3)

(0) Reclassifications

Reclassifications have been made to the 2001 amounts to conform with the
presentation of the 2002 amounts.

Cash and Investments

The investment and deposit of Authority monies are governed by the provisions of the
Ohio Revised Code. In accordance with these statutes, only financial institutions located in
Ohio are eligible to hold public deposits. The statutes also permit the Authority to invest
its monies in certificates of deposit, savings accounts, money market accounts, the State
Treasurer’s Asset Reserve investment pool (STAR Ohio), and obligations of the United
States government or certain agencies thereof. The Authority may also enter into
repurchase agreements with any eligible depository for a period not exceeding 30 days.

STAR Ohio is an investment pool managed by the State Treasurer’s Office, which allows
governments within the State to pool their funds for investment purposes. STAR Ohio is
not registered with the Securities Exchange Commission as an investment company, but
does operate in a manner similar to Rule 2a7 of the Investment Company Act of 1940.
Investments in STAR Ohio are valued at STAR Ohio’s share price, which is the price the
investment could be sold for on December 31, 2002.

Public depositories must give security for all public funds on deposit. These institutions
may either specifically collateralize individual accounts in addition to amounts insured by
the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC), or may pledge a pool of government
securities valued at least 105% of the total value of public monies on deposit at the
institution. Repurchase agreements must be secured by the specific government securities
upon which the repurchase agreements are based. These securities must be obligations of
or guaranteed by the United States and mature or be redeemable within 5 years of the date
of the related repurchase agreement. State law does not require security for public deposits
and investments to be maintained in the Authority’s name. Investments in stripped
principal or interest obligations, reverse repurchase agreements, and derivatives are
prohibited.

During 2002 and 2001, the Authority complied with the provisions of these statutes.
(a) Deposits With Financial Institutions

At December 31, 2002, the carrying amount of the Authority’s deposits with financial
institutions was $4,882,057 and the bank balance was $5,710,792. The difference
results mainly from outstanding checks. In addition, the Authority had $6,923 of cash
on hand. $100,000 was insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation
(Category 1 as defined by the GASB) and $5,610,792 was collateralized by a pool of
securities maintained by the Authority’s financial institutions but not in the
Authority’s name (Category 3 as defined by the GASB).

(continued)
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(b) Investments and Other Deposits

The Authority’s investments are detailed below and categorized in accordance with
the criteria established by the GASB to give an indication of the level of risk assumed
as of December 31, 2002. Category 1 includes investments that are insured or
registered or for which the securities are held by the Authority or its agent in the
Authority’s name. Category 2 includes investments that are uninsured and
unregistered for which the securities are held by the counterparty’s trust department or
agent in the Authority’s name. Category 3 includes uninsured and unregistered
investments for which securities are held by the counterparty or by its trust
department or agent but not in the Authority’s name. Deposits and equities in pools
of funds managed by other governmental units are not categorized.

As of December 31, 2002 and 2001, the Authority held equity of $18,265,944 and
$28,746,688 in the STAR Ohio investment pool. This investment has not been
categorized based on a custodial risk because it is not a security. The relationship
between the Authority and the investment asset is a direct contractual relationship and
the investments evidence ownership or creditorship.

Investments held as of December 31, 2002:

Category Reported/
Description 1 2 3 Fair Value
U.S. Treasury notes and
federal agency obligations $- $- $11,233,315 $11,233,315
Equity in the state
treasurer’s investment pool $18,265.944
(Star Ohio)
Total investments $29.499,259

(4) Board Restricted Assets

Board restricted assets comprise the following:

2002 2001
Restricted for self-insurance $12,559,970 $ 12,010,382
Restricted for capital expenditures _3,569,820 5,630,333
Total Board restricted $16,129,790 $ 17,640,715
(continued)
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®)

(6)

Property and Equipment
The cost of property and equipment is comprised of the following:

December 31,

2002 2001
Land $ 5,150,657 $ 5,168,315
Land and leasehold improvements 8,945,518 12,733,953
Buildings and improvements 38,629,034 29,588,651
Revenue vehicles 77,057,379 79,786,380
Transit shelters 2,948,428 2,935,998
Other equipment 31,573,940 33,329,524
Construction in progress 1,923,986 5,385,250
Total Cost 166,228,941 168,928,071
Accumulated Depreciation (84,155,678) (79,001,885)
Total Net Book Value $_82.073.263 $_89.926.186

Leases

COTA leases certain property and office equipment under operating leases. Future
minimum payments, by year, and in the aggregate, under these leases with initial or
remaining terms of one year or more, consisted of the following at December 31, 2002:

Commitments under
Operating Leases

2003 $ 526,143
2004 525,806
2005 448,568
2006 296,637
2007 198,320
Thereafter -
Total minimum lease payments $ 1,995,474

Regtal expense for all operating leases was approximately $534,000 in 2002 and $315,000
in 2001.

(continued)
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Grants, Reimbursements and Special Fare Assistance

Grants, reimbursements and special fare assistance included in the statements of revenues
and expenses for the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, consist of the following:

2002 2001 -

Federal:
FTA Operating Assistance $12,400,518 $ 11,388,826
FTA Capital Assistance 3,125,130 23,475,497
Total $15.525.648 $34.864,323
State:
ODOT Operating Assistance $ 1,710 $ 1,215,206
ODOT Elderly and Disabled Fare Assistance 305,674 304,152
ODOT Fuel Tax Reimbursement 552,517 616,463
ODOT Capital Assistance 351,032 2,850,522
Total $1,210,933 $.4,986,343
Risk Management

COTA is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft or destruction of assets,
injuries to employees and natural disasters.

COTA is self-insured for all public liabilit%r, personal injury and property damage claims.

The estimated liability for such claims of $335,555 at December 31, 2002, and $440,086

at December 31, 2001, are included in liabilities payable from restricted assets in the

accompanying balance sheets. At December 31, 2002, and 2001, $12,559,970 and

$12,010,382, respectively, were restricted by the Board of Trustees to fund the self-

li)nslurancehprogram. Such funds are included in board-restricted assets in the accompanying
alance sheets.

Prior to June 30, 1998, COTA was insured through the State of Ohio Bureau of Workers’
Compensation (BWC) for injuries to its employees. On July 1, 1998, the Authority entered
into an agreement with the BWC to become self-insured for claims pertaining to work-
related injuries to Authority employees occurring on or after that date. The BWC agreed to
continue to administer and pay all compensation claims arising on or before June 30,
1998. The estimated liability for all such claims occurring since July 1, 1998, is $355,902
at December 31, 2002, and is included as a liability in the accompanying balance sheet.

The general claims liability was calculated by establishing reserves on a case-by-case basis

after analysis by in-house counsel and outside attorneys. The workers’ compensation
liability was determined by analyzing claim lag information provided by COTA third party

(continued)
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administrators. A summary of changes in self-insurance claims liability for the years ended

December 31, 2002 and 2001 follows:

General Workers’
_Liability = _Compensation
Claims liability at December 31, 2000 287,173 § 360,000
Incurred claims, net of favorable settlements 395,751 323,035
Claims paid (289,634)
Claims liability at December 31, 2001 440,086 393,401
Incurred claims, net of favorable settlements 131,525 305,171
Claims paid (342,670)
Claims liability at December 31, 2002 335,555 $ 355,902

Defined Benefit Pension Plan

(a) Plan Description

(b)

COTA contributes to the Ohio Public Employees Retirement System (OPERS), a cost
sharing, and multiple-employer public employee retirement system. OPERS provides
retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living adjustments and death benefits
to plan members and beneficiaries. Chapter 145 of the Ohio Revised Code (ORC)
assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the OPERS Board
of Trustees (Board). OPERS issues a stand-alone financial report that includes the
financial statements. That report may be obtained bg writing to Public Employees
Retirement System, 277 East Town Street, Columbus, Ohio, 43215-4642, or by
calling 1-614-222-6705 or 1-800-222-PERS (7377).

Funding Policy

Plan members are required to contribute 8.5% of their annual covered salary and
COTA is required to contribute an actuarially determined rate. The 2002 and 2001
employer contribution rate for local government employer units was 13.55% of
annual covered 1payroll. The Board instituted a temporary employer contribution rate
rollback for calendar year 2000. The rate rollback was 20% for state and local
government divisions.” The 2000 rate unit was 10.84% of covered payroll. The
contribution requirements of plan members and COTA are establishec{) and may be
amended by the Board. COTA’s contributions to OPERS for the years ending
December 31, 2002, 2001, and 2000 were approximately $5,019,000, $5,042,000, and
$3,774,000, respectively, equal to the required contributions for each year. Required
emp%oyer contributions are equal to 100% of the dollar amount billed to each
employer.

(continued)
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Other Post-employment Benefits

OPERS also provides post-retirement health care coverage to age and service retirees
with 10 or more years of qualifying Ohio service credit. Health care coverage for
disability recipients and primary survivor recipients is available. The health care
coverage provided by the retirement system is considered an Other Post-employment
Benefit (OPEB) as described in GASB Statement No. 12. A portion of each
employer’s confribution to OPERS is set aside for funding of the post-retirement
health” care. The Ohio Revised Code provides statutory authority for employer
contributions. The employer contribution rate was rolled back for the year 2000. For
local government employer units, the 2002 rate was 13.55% of covered payroll; and
5.00% was the portion that was used to fund health care for the year. COTA’s
contributions actually made to fund post-employment benefits totaled $1,852,000 in
2002 and $1,600,100 in 2001.

The Ohio Revised Code provides the statutory authority requiring public employers to
fund post-retirement health care through their contributions to OPERS.

Summary of assumptions:

Actuarial Review — The assumptions and calculations below were based on the
System’s latest Actuarial Review performed as of December 31, 2001.

Funding Method — An entry age normal actuarial cost method of valuation is used in
determining the present value of OPEB. The difference between assumed and actual
exgelrience (actuarial gains and losses) becomes part of unfunded actuarial accrued
liability.

Assets Valuation Method — All investments are carried at market value. For actuarial
valuation purposes, a smoothed market approach is used. Under this approach assets
are adjusted annually to reflect 25% of unrealized market appreciation or depreciation
on investment assets.

Investment Return — The investment assumption rate for 2001 was 8.00%.

Active Employee Total Payroll — An annual increase of 4.00% compounded annually, is
the base portion of the individual pay increase assumption. This assumes no change in
the number of active employees. Additionally, annual pay increases, over and above
the 4.00% base increase, were assumed to range from 0.50% to 6.30%.

Health Care — Health care costs were assumed to increase 4.00% annually.

OPEBs are advanced funded on an actuarially determined basis. The number of active
participating participants at December 31, 2001, was 402,041. The actuarial value of the
Retirement System’s net assets available for OPEB at December 31, 2001 was $11.6
billion. The actuarially accrued liability and the unfunded actuarial accrued liability, based
on the actuarial cost method used, were $16.4 billion and $2.6 billion, respectively.

(continued)
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In December 2001, the Board adopted the Health Care “Choices” Plan in its continuing
effort to respond to the rise in the cost of Health Care. The Choices Plan will be offered to
all person newly hired under OPERS after January 1, 2003, with no prior service credit
accumulated toward health care coverage. Choices, as the name suggests, will incorporate
a cafeteria approach, offering a more broad range of health care options. The Plan uses a
graded scale from ten to thirty years to calculate a monthly health care benefit. This is in
contrast to the ten-year “cliff” eligibility standard for the present Plan.

The benefit recipient will be free to select the option that best meets their needs.
Recipients will fund health care costs in excess of their monthly health care benefit. The
Plan will also offer a spending account feature, enabling the benefit recipient to apply their
allowance toward specific medical expenses, much like a Medical Spending Account.

Contingent Liabilities
(a) Litigation

It is the Authority’s policy to act as self-insurer for certain insurable risks consisting
grimarily of public liability and property damage. At December 31, 2002, COTA has

een named 1 various public liability and property damage claims and suits, some of
which seek significant damages. The ultimate outcome of the claims and suits cannot
be determined; however, it is the opinion of management that any resulting liability to
the Authority in excess of that provided for in the accompanying balance sheet will
not have a material adverse effect on the Authority’s financial position.

(b) Federal and State Grants

Under the terms of the Authority’s various grants, periodic audits are required where
certain costs could be questioned as not being an eligible expenditure under the terms
of the grants. At December 31, 2002, there were no material questioned costs that had
not been resolved with appropriate federal and state agencies. Questioned costs could
still be identified during audits to be conducted in the future, In the opinion of
COTA’s management, no material grant expenditures will be disallowed.

FTA grant stipulations also require the granter to retain assets acquired by FTA funds

for the full estimated asset until life (as determined by the FTA). If this provision is
not met, the granter must refund FTA’s un-depreciated basis in assets disposed.

(continued)

41



CENTRAL OHIO TRANSIT AUTHORITY
Supplemental Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Equity - Budget vs. Actual (Accrual Basis)
Year ended December 31, 2002

FAVORABLE /
(UNFAVORABLE)
BUDGET ACTUAL VARIANCE
OPERATING REVENUES.......cccocirterrentnsenissesessassissnssresessanesssss $14,228,364 $13,811,406 $ (416,958)
OPERATING EXPENSES OTHER THAN DEPRECIATION:
DO o ceeeireieeeseieniersiresaererseanessessessessasssaesseeresseosassterassonsonnnnatanans 38,309,580 32,589,595 5,719,985
Fringe BENefitS.....oucuecvermriiiiniieiiisiiisss ettt eseneenons 14,245,054 18,768,795 (4,523,741)
Materials and SUPPLIES...c.cocevermrerrcriserirsirirsterereserrsesssssesssssesenes 5,830,927 5,483,476 347,451
Purchased transSportation..........c.ceeeveecveieeiensesnessiesinesnnnnenesne 4,006,406 3,876,524 129,882
CEIVICES cvevvereessreersresrerssessaseenerssesnesstssneshnesssessesssessssatassesssssanssnans 4,086,180 3,765,390 320,790
TTHLIEEES e veereeneereeerecssiissesseersessnssesssessseseessaesnnersessassssssesnsssnssssninnenns 1,346,947 1,172,969 173,978
TAKES. cr v erveseeseessesseessessssensersrsessasssessesesstenssssessesmonnissessosssnsnnsessesnans 673,530 620,586 52,944
Leases and reNtalS......o.cireiieeernreeneeeseessareesssneseesseneessessssesssnsesssens 623,141 558,418 64,723
Claims and insurance, net of settlements.........cccevvvevinvrcriieenenns 509,649 337,153 172,496
MISCEHANEOUS. ...ccvrviereirrereeerrencesrensnreresssasaraesenssesniisesaresssnsenne: 1,039,497 677,424 362,073
TOAL v eueeeerieieeristerreseeseseereeseesesbe e sseesarsenseseeseenesnsssasiasiesnnrnes 70,670,911 67,850,330 2,820,581
DEPRECIATION.......oovvireireereeeesseeresssessessesssseesesssesssninssssosesanssannes 10,186,608 13,644,144 (3,457,536)
Total operating EXPenSeS........cvvrveervrvnsrerssiersesessersnessscsenssune: 80,857,519 81,494,474 (636,955)
EXCESS OF OPERATING EXPENSES INCLUDING
DEPRECIATION OVER OPERATING REVENUES................. (66,629,155) (67,683,068) (1,053,913)
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
SALES TAX TEVEIUES. c.vevvivvereererseneesersssesssnsessessesesseeseensssonsonnassasseses 41,022,172 41,244,787 222,615
Federal operating grants and reimbursements ........ccccooevseienencnce 12,720,304 12,400,518 (319,786)
State operating grants, reimbursements and
special fare assistance........oovevrrivireeriesmnennsssscesesinee e 834,115 859,901 25,786
INtErest INCOMIE. .. .vvieieerrerieerreesrueesrreeessaseessseessnesssessneessanans 904,391 899,678 (4,713)
Nontransportation and other IEVENUES........c.cevevereniseenencenecnnae. 963,997 1,184,069 220,072
TOLAL ceeeveereeieeisinsveseersesesesesseesessessessesnssessesssesssenesnesnsessnsones 56,444,979 56,588,953 143,974
Loss before capital gifts and grants............ccooviiiiiiiininnnnnn. (10,184,176) (11,094,115) (909,939)
Federal capital grants €arned.........ocovveerineernrorennsissisnsrenineensenns 16,156,953 3,125,130 (13,031,823)
State capital grants €arned............coureermvrererrenreiesneninicsenssneeene 10,054,348 351,032 (9,703,316)
NET REVENUES OVER EXPENSES......ccccecimiecmmnininensicrnsnnesseenes 16,027,125 (7,617,953) (23,645,078)
NET CHANGE IN EQUITY ..ooveeeererertinaresneessimaneiosisseerissessssssaanes 16,027,125 (7,617,953) (23,645,078)
TOTAL EQUITY, DECEMBER 31, 2001...ccocoiniiriceriansneneerennnns 127,976,842 127,976,842 -
TOTAL EQUITY, DECEMBER 31, 2002......ccoiemrmeerriirnsnnrerneraneines $144,003,967 $120,358,889 $ (23,645,078)

See accompanying Independent Auditors' report.
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CENTRAL OHIO TRANSIT AUTHORITY
Revenues and Operating Assistance -
Comparison to Industry Trend Data
Last Ten Fiscal Years

TRANSPORTATION INDUSTRY (1)

OPERATING AND OTHER REVENUE OPERATING ASSISTANCE TOTAL
STATE & ALL
YEAR PASSENGER OTHER TOTAL LOCAL FEDERAL TOTAL REVENUES
1993 36.8 44 41.2 53.2 5.6 58.8 100.0
1994 37.6 126 @ 502 44.7 @ 5.1 49.8 100.0
1995 373 15.4 52.7 42.8 4.5 47.3 100.0
1996 38.7 15.3 54.0 42.9 3.1 46.0 100.0
1997 40.1 15.6 55.7 41.3 3.0 - 443 '100.0
1998 40.8 15.2 56.0 40.1 39 44.0 100.0
1999 37.3 16.4 53.7 42.4 39 46.3 100.0
2000 36.1 17.4 53.5 42.4 4.1 46.5 100.0
2001 352 14.1 49.3 46.2 4.5 50.7 100.0
2002 * * * * * * *

CENTRAL OHIO TRANSIT AUTHORITY @3)

OPERATING AND OTHER REVENUE OPERATING ASSISTANCE TOTAL

STATE & ALL

YEAR PASSENGER OTHER TOTAL LOCAL FEDERAL TOTAL REVENUES

(C] ©)

1993 16.7 29.9 46.6 46.5 6.9 53.4 100.0
1994 20.3 10.9 31.2 60.4 8.4 68.8 100.0
1995 14.7 32.9 47.6 47.0 5.4 524 100.0
1996 214 9.7 311 65.0 39 68.9 100.0
1997 21.0 8.7 29.7 64.5 58 70.3 100.0
1998 213 10.1 (5 314 65.5 3.1 68.6 100.0
1999 16.3 17.1 334 54.6 12.0 66.6 100.0
2000 16.9 11.0 27.9 57.8 14.3 72.1 100.0
2001 13.6 29.7 43.3 45.0 11.7 56.7 100.0
2002 17.7 8.5 26.2 57.0 16.8 73.8 100.0

* ‘Information not available

(1) Source: The American Public Transit Association, APTA Transit Fact Book
(2) Beginning in 1994, other local government subsidies such as bridge and tunnel tolls and non-transit parking lot fees
were reclassified from "local operating assistance” to "other revenue”
(3) Percentages are derived from the Authority's independently audited annual financial statements, restated from 1992 to 2000
due to changes in the recording of local sales tax revenue and the recognition of capital grants and gifts as revenues
(4) Includes auxiliary transportation revenues, interest income, planning study assistance revenue, nontransportation, other revenues and capital grants
(5) Excludes experience refund from the Bureau of Workers' Compensation (BWC)
(6) Includes local sales tax revenues, and state operating grants, reimbursements, and special fare assistance

45



CENTRAL OHIO TRANSIT AUTHORITY

Farebox Revenues vs. Operating Expenses
Last Ten Fiscal Years

- 80.0
70.0
60.0
2 500
L
% 40.0
o
= 30.0
A
20.0
10.0
1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002
Farebox revenues include passenger, special transit, and charter revenues;
operating expenses exclude depreciation
@ Farebox Revenues HE Operating Expenses
CENTRAL OHIO TRANSIT AUTHORITY
Farebox Recovery Ratio
Last Ten Fiscal Years
30.0%
25.0% -
20.0% -
15.0% -i
10.0% -
5.0% -
0.0% -

1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002

Recovery ratio is calculated as farebox revenues (as defined above) divided by operating expenses (as
defined above)
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CENTRAL OHIO TRANSIT AUTHORITY
Operating Expenses - Comparison to Industry Trend Data
Last Ten Fiscal Years

TRANSPORTATION INDUSTRY @

LABOR MATERIALS CLAIMS PURCHASED TOTAL
AND AND AND TRANSPOR- OPERATING
YEAR FRINGES SERVICES SUPPLIES  UTILITIES INSURANCE TATION OTHER EXPENSES (2)

1993 71.1 5.3 8.9 3.6 3.4 10.4 2.6) 100.0
1994 70.7 4.7 8.9 3.6 3.4 10.9 (23) 100.0
1995 71.1 438 9.0 35 2.9 . 108 2.1) 100.0
1996 71.6 5.1 93 3.6 2.8 9.9 (2.3) 100.0
1997 72.2 5.6 9.4 3.7 217 9.1 @7 100.0
1998 717 6.0 9.4 35 2.4 10.1 3.1 100.0
1999 70.9 5.9 9.2 33 22 11.5 3B.0) 100.0
2000 69.8 5.7 10.0 32 2.2 12.2 (3.1 100.0
2001 69.5 5.9 10.0 33 2.1 12.6 (3.4 100.0
2002 * * * * * * * *

CENTRAL OHIO TRANSIT AUTHORITY @)

LABOR MATERIALS CLAIMS PURCHASED TOTAL
AND AND AND TRANSPOR- OPERATING
YEAR FRINGES SERVICES SUPPLIES  UTILITIES INSURANCE TATION OTHER EXPENSES 2)

1993 75.0 5.5 9.6 1.9 1.3 3.5 32 100.0
1994 76.2 5.6 8.4 2.0 0.7 3.8 3.3 100.0
1995 76.5 5.3 8.2 1.9 0.5 42 3.4 100.0
1996 76.6 4.8 8.0 2.3 0.2) 52 3.3 100.0
1997 76.4 4.8 73 1.8 0.2 59 3.6 100.0
1998 75.4 5.6 7.4 1.7 0.2 58 39 100.0
1999 72.8 8.5 7.3 1.7 0.4 5.6 3.7 100.0
2000 69.5 9.4 9.3 1.7 0.4 5.9 3.8 100.0
2001 73.2 6.6 8.8 1.9 0.6 57 3.3 100.0
2002 75.7 5.6 8.1 1.7 0.5 5.7 2.7 100.0

* Information not available

(1) Source: The American Public Transit Association, APTA Transit Fact Book

(2) Total operating expenses exclude depreciation

(3) Percentages are derived from the Authority's independenitly audited annual financial statements
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CENTRAL OHIO TRANSIT AUTHORITY

Legal Debt Margin
December 31, 2002
(in thousands)

CALCULATION OF LEGAL OVERALL DEBT MARGIN:

Total assessed property valuation of Authority
(2002 tax year valuation) (1) ..cocveeecernnmnnnsiiescsissi s

Multiplied by: Legal overall debt limitation (%) ......cccovrecrnmiininnncnsiiiininiceines

Equals: Total legal voted and unvoted debt limitation .........c.eevvvieciiiniiiiinnnnnn,
Less: Nonexempt general obligation debt (voted and unvoted) (2) ..c.covevreirerecenenn.

Equals: Legal overall debt margin (maximum amount permitted for new
voted and unvoted nonexempt general obligation debt issuances) ..............

CALCULATION OF LEGAL UNVOTED DEBT MARGIN:

Total assessed property valuation of Franklin County
(2002 tax year valuation) (1) ...ccceeeimeieninninseenicscsr st

Multiplied by: Legal unvoted debt limitation (%0) .....cccoovvvenmninsnicnniniiininnnnnnen,
Equals: Legal unvoted debt mitation ........eomeeeinciicniiinininc e

Less: Maximum aggregate amounts of principal and interest
payable in any one calendar year (2) ......coevecrnnsiniimiininniie

Equals: Legal unvoted debt margin (maximum annual debt service charges
permitted for new unvoted nonexempt general obligation debt issuances) .

Sources:

(1) Franklin County Auditor's Office

(2) The Authority's independently audited annual financial statements

$25,447,192

5.00%

1,272,360

0

$1,272,360

$25,447,192

0.10%

25,447

$25,447
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CENTRAL OHIO TRANSIT AUTHORITY ,
Ratio of General Bonded Debt to Assessed Value and
Net Bonded Debt per Capita
Last Ten Fiscal Years

RATIO OF
GENERAL BONDED DEBT TO BONDED DEBT
YEAR POPULATION ASSESSED VALUE BONDED DEBT ASSESSED VALUE PER CAPITA

)] @
1993 1,001,354 (2 $15,374,617,834 $7,965,000 0.05% $7.95
1994 1,014,465 (2) $15,672,478,794 $7,025,000 0.04% $6.92
1995 1,027,599 @ $16,055,247,822 $6,030,000 0.04% $5.87
1996 1,042,011 (2) $17,356,432,082 $4,970,000 0.03% $4.77
1997 1,056,654 (2 $17,916,289,322 $3,840,000 0.02% $3.63
1998 1,067,002 (2 $18,607,708,184 $2,640,000 0.01% $2.47
1999 1,079,204 (2 $21,032,111,000 $1,360,000 0.01% $1.26
2000 1,068,978 (1) $22,321,127,505 $0 0.00% $0.00
2001 1,071,524 (1) $22,705,244,424 $0 0.00% $0.00
2002 1,086,814 (1) $25,447,191,720 $0 0.00% $0.00

Sources:

(1) U. S. Department of Commerce - Bureau of the Census

(2) Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission estimate for year ended
(3) Franklin County Auditor's Office

(4) The Authority's independently audited annual financial statements
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CENTRAL OHIO TRANSIT AUTHORITY
Computation of Direct and Overlapping Debt

December 31, 2002
(in 000's)
GROSS GENERAL —APPLICABLE TO THE AUTHORITY--

POLITICAL SUBDIVISION OBLIGATION DEBT PERCENTAGE 1 DOLLAR AMOUNT
Central Ohio Transit Authority $ 0 100.00 % 0
Franklin County 151,356 100.00 151,356
Cities wholly within Franklin County 1,509,847 100.00 1,509,847
Cities with overlapping jurisdictions:

City of Dublin 59,600 86.96 51,828

City of Pickerington 15,290 0.55 84
Villages wholly within Franklin County 15,215 100.00 15,215
Village with overlapping jurisdiction:

Village of Canal Winchester 5,359 92.25 4,944
Townships wholly within Franklin County 6,347 100.00 6,347
Township with overlapping jurisdiction:

Washington Township 1,045 87.26 912
School Districts wholly within Franklin County 230,073 100.00 230,073
School Districts with overlapping jurisdictions: _

Canal Winchester Local 32,582 77.13 25,130

Dublin City 168,667 85.17 143,654

Hilliard City 133,725 99.99 133,712

Licking Heights Local 24,688 42.91 10,594

Madison Plains Local 50 3.28 2

Olentangy Local 54,802 9.34 5,119

Pickerington Local 98,795 2.03 2,006

Plain Local 47,574 99.99 47,569

South-Western City 145,064 99.84 144,832

Teays Valley Local 22,365 0.11 25

Westerville City 132,185 80.91 106,951

Delaware County Joint Vocational 355 0.08 0

Eastland Joint Vocational 300 65.77 197

Licking County Joint Vocational 835 434 36
Library with overlapping jurisdiction:

Delaware County District Library 1,995 6.05 121

TOTAL: $ 2,590,552

Source: Franklin County Auditor's Office; primarily from debt schedules submitted by subdivisions to the Franklin County
Budget Commission and the Settlement Division of the Franklin County Auditor's Office

(1) Percentages were determined by dividing the assessed valuation of the portion of the jurisdiction within Franklin County
by the total assessed valuation of the entire jurisdiction. Valuations used are the 2002 tax year.
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CENTRAL OHIO TRANSIT AUTHORITY
Fare Rate Structure
December 31, 2002

CASH OR TICKET FARES:
EXPIESS vvverereacressesesesesinassessmnsaesaessessssss s e sasass s sesscsses $ 175
Local and CrOSSIOWIL ......cvecveervererreermerisinsnissrreesiesresnessassssennnns 1.25
Project Mainstream (1) ......coovvermemmmienninnnnn s, 1.75
COTA LINK (2) ceetverienrmrissesiemssnssinsssssesessssissesssssssssassssseseses 0.25
TLANSTET .oivvivieeercereereeterertreser et e s eesr et sbe s saresasbes e s ne s snesasasn 0.10
DAY PASSES (3):
AUIE (4) 1ot $§ 3.00
Human Service Agency (5) ..couvemrmnmrieinenensisiesess e 2.50
Children 7-12 years, Senior Discount Card (6),
Key Card (7) or ADA Card (8) ...ccoeervrrinnrimnncninicncinnen 1.50
MONTHLY PASSES:
EXPIESS vuvvevrearseeesenescsenisessesssinssssssasssesssssssssassssssessssanssssessenses $ 55.00
) 70707 OO OO OO P OSSP 40.00
Project Mainstream (1) .....ccovvevmnmeiiereinnniesnnccns e, 55.00
Senior Discount Card (6), Key Card (7),
Or ADA Card (8) ..covecerreeeiriiicniciininr s 18.00
SPECIAL FARES:
Children 7-12 years, Senior Discount Card (7),
Key Card (7) or ADA Card (8) ....cccovvmrrrreemreirnreireniissenncencen. $ 0.60
Children under 7 YEAars ........occvcrreeriimniernsressiesessesessesesnrsessess FREE
S.C.OT. ()t s s 2.50/Person,

75.00 minimun

(1) Door-to-door service on demand, in wheelchair lift-equipped paratransit mini-buses, for eligible
disabled riders holding an "ADA" card

(2) Midday shuttle-type service

(3) Good for one day of unlimited travel on all local/crosstown routes

(4) Additional $0.50 required for express service

(5) Distributed by approved nonprofit service agencies for use by their clientele

(6) Photo identification card, for riders aged 65 and over

(7) Photo identification card, for eligible disabled riders

(8) Photo identification card, for physically or mentally disabled riders eligible for Project Mainstream service
(9) Senior Citizens On the Town - roundtrip fare for special service to groups of thirty or more senior citizens

Source: COTA, 2001 Short Range Transit Plan, published by the Authority
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CENTRAL OHIO TRANSIT AUTHORITY
Demographic Statistics
Last Ten Fiscal Years

PER CAPITA MEDIAN K- 12 SCHOOL UNEMPLOYMENT

YEAR POPULATION INCOME AGE _ENROLLMENT RATE

) @ @ © ™)
1993 1,001,354 $21,739 32.3 173,030 4.5%
1994 1,014,465 $22,959 32.6 174,459 3.7%
1995 1,027,599 $24,943 33.0 177,296 O 3.0%
1996 1,042,011 $25,959 330 () 181,386 2.9%
1997 1,056,654 $26,647 330 ) 183351 2.7%
1998 1,067,002 $29,425 329 (55 188,704 2.5%
1999 1,079,204 $30,214 32.9 190,857 2.5%
2000 1,068,978 (2 $31,908 32.5 192,794 2.4%
2001 1,071,524 $32,361 * 197,731 2.8%
2002 1,086,814 @  * * 197,300 4.4%

Note: All information presented is for Franklin County

* Information not available

Sources:
(1) Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission estimate for the year ended
(2) U. S. Department of Commerce - Bureau of the Census
(3) U. S. Department of Commerce - Bureau of Economic Analysis

(4) "Survey of Buying Power", special issue published annually by "Sales and Marketing Management"
magazine

(5) "Sourcebook of County Demographics”, 10th & 11th ed., published by CACI Marketing Systems,
Arlington, VA

(6) Ohio Department of Education - Division of Information Management Services

(7) Ohio Department of Job and Family Services
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CENTRAL OHIO TRANSIT AUTHORITY
Miscellaneous Statistics

As of, or for, the Year ended December 31, 2002

Date of creation of Authority by local county
and municipal ZOVEINMENLS ...c...cceeiriiiiiniensrernesinniensninssrsssesseens February 17, 1971

Date of acquisition of assets of Columbus

Transit Company (C.T.C.) ccovirmiinmnninninininseninesesieseens June 29, 1973
Date of commencement of Authority Operations ..........cceererresasennn: January 1, 1974
FOrm of GOVEINMENLE ..cccerueermemrererisiissririiiiisessesssssassssesssnsssssnseenns Board of Trustees, with

fulltime President/CEQ
NUMDET OF TIUSIEES ...vvivvevrererrerserricsseriisensusessseesnnssseessresssassssssssns 13
County in which Authority OPerates .......vcemeeimsrrrnessesreneeneesnsniens Franklin County and small portions

of adjacent Delaware, Fairfield
and Licking Counties, Ohio

Type of tAX SUPPOTL «..cvvrviniiririrmvernerinerenseerssesssssnsssienssestsnssaenerenns Service Area Sales Tax - 1/4%
(permanent)

Size Of AULNOTILY covevvvveverrcrierri ettt 555 square miles

MILES OF TOULE .vevvireeieriee ettt bt saas e 958.5

NUMDEL OF TOULES «.cvveeerireneersirsssniersitiresiicsseissssasssessssnsssessnsoncenaes 67

Number of bus stop 10CRLIONS ....ocvcvvrvirviiiiiieniein e 4,621

Number of bus stop passenger Shelers .......coocvveveivminiernrniinieinane 377

Number of Park-and-Ride facilities .......ococurvvereeieneierenneiesinsennnnns 25

Parking capacity, all Park-and-Ride facilities ......ccoceevveniceavinannns 2,221 automobiles

Number of active fleet DUSES ....ovcevervceeriniinniiiineiiieneiennr e 299

Average bus vehicle g .....cocvvvrininiinniiin e 5.4 years

Average SyStem SPEEd ...vevuvirriririeniiiiinirie s, 13.97 miles per hour

Average system fuel €CONOMY .....oviniariiinirineiineriineiseiesssenesnns 4.93 miles per gallon

Number of customer information calls received .......cccovvccriimenvunians 1,174,862

58



. ;WMNW&%
B

R
G

o
b
b

o

e

_

%

o

b
|







88 Fast Broad Street
P.O. Box 1140

Auditor of State Columbus, Ohio 43216-1140
Telephone  614-466-4514
Betty Montgomery P 400.282.0370

Facsimile  614-466-4490

CENTRAL OHIO TRANSIT AUTHORITY

FRANKLIN COUNTY

CLERK'S CERTIFICATION
This is a true and correct copy of the report which is required to be filed in the Office
of the Auditor of State pursuant to Section 117.26, Revised Code, and which is filed
in Columbus, Ohio.

desan Toubbitt

CLERK OF THE BUREAU

CERTIFIED
SEPTEMBER 16, 2003
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